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ITEM 2. ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF ASSETS

On November 3, 1997, CACI International Inc annaththat it has completed its acquisition of GovegntriSystems, Inc. ("GSI"). CACI
paid $28 million in cash for the business and ssets of GSI, plus an additional payment of $5lbanito pay-off an existing debt of GSI.
The transaction was funded through borrowings utitiecompany's existing line of credit.

GSI, headquartered in Chantilly, Virginia, has apmately 250 employees worldwide. Its current aaimavenues are $36 million. GSI
delivers international communications and netwalated services to the U.S. Government and otlgamizations.

A copy of the Company's November 3, 1997 PressaRelesgarding the acquisition of GSI is attacheahaSxhibit to this Report on Form 8-
K.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS.

(a)(1) Financial Statements. Consolidated finarstialements for GSI for the year ended March 28718nd Independent Accountants'
Report.

(b)(2) Pro forma financial information of CACI ftine most recent fiscal year ended June 30, 1997oarte quarter ended September 30,
1997.

The following CACI pro forma condensed consolidadtatements of operations for the year ended Jong9®7 and for the quarter ended
September 30, 1997, and the CACI pro forma conatditibalance sheets as of June 30, 1997 and SeptdMhl 997, are unaudited and have
been prepared on a pro forma basis to give effetttet acquisition (accounted for as a purchas#jeobusiness and net assets of GSI as if the
transaction had occurred on July 1, 1997.

The pro forma condensed consolidated statemergarations for the year ended June 30, 1997 dogsumpbrt to represent what CAClI's
result of operations would actually have been haditansaction in fact occurred on the aforemestiatate, or to project CACI's results of
operations for any future periods. The pro formasithents are based upon available informationugormeh certain assumptions that
management believes are reasonable under the Gtanoes.

The pro forma condensed consolidated financiagstahts should be read in conjunction with the hisabfinancial statements of both CACI
and GSI including the notes thereto.

(c)Exhibits.

Exhibit 99.1 Acquisition Agreement by and among GA@ernational Inc, CACI, Inc. and Government ®yss, Inc. dated as of October 31,
1997, and the

Exhibit 99.2 Closing Agreement by and among CAGQGeinational Inc, CACI, Inc. and Infonet Services@wation dated as of October 31,
1997

Exhibit 99.3 Press Release dated November 3, Ed8iguncing completion of the GSI business acqais



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS, INC.
Financial Statements for the Year Ended

March 28,1997 and Independent Auditors' Re



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Government Systems, Inc.
Chantilly, VA

We have audited the accompanying balance she@swdrnment Systems, Inc. (the Company) as of Ma&;1997, and the related
statements of income, stockholders' equity, ant laws for the year then ended. These financatkeshents are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sgpan opinion on these financial statements basedr audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generadbepted auditing standards. Those standardsedtyat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethenthedial statements are free of material misstatemd@naudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digeesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememtell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the financial gisi of the Company at March 28, 1997, and
the results of its operations and its cash flowsHe year then ended in conformity with generaltgepted accounting principles.

/sl

[Deloitte & Touche LLP]

McLean, Virginia

May 30, 1997 (except for Notes 10 and 11, for which the dates are July 9,
1997 and Novenber 1, 1997, respectively)



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS INC.

BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 28, 1997
(Dollars in Thousands)

March 28,
1997

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other

Costs incurred in excess of billings (Note 3)
Deferred tax asset (Notes 2 and 6)

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - At cost (Note 2):
Communication, computer, and related equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and other equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net property and equipment

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred tax asset (Notes 2 and 6)
Deposits
Other assets (Note 8)
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL

See notes to financial statemel

(Continued)



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS INC.

BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 28, 1997
(Dollars in Thousands)

March 28,
1997
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $5,049
Current portion due, long-term debt (Note 7) 4,358
Income taxes payable (Notes 2 and 6) 607
Total current liabilities 10,014
LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 7) 7,671
DEFERRED INCOME, COMPENSATION, AND ROYALTIES 1,276

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 3) -

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Capital stock, $.01 par value per share;

1,050 issued & outstanding 1
Additional paid-in capital 3,000
Retained earnings 6,647

Total stockholders' equity 9,648

TOTAL $28,609
(Concluded)

See notes to financial statemel



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS INC.

STATEMENT OF INCOME
YEAR ENDED MARCH 28, 1997
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended March 28, 1997

REVENUES (Note 1):

Communication and computer services
Interest and other income

Total revenues

EXPENSES:
Direct labor
Other direct costs
Overhead
General and administrative
Interest expense

Total expenses
INCOME BEFORE TAXES

INCOME TAXES (Note 6)

NET INCOME

See notes to financial statemel

$38,884



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS INC.

STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEAR ENDED MARCH 28, 1997
(Dollars in Thousands)

Capital

Stock Total

----------------- Paid-in
Retained Stockholder's

Shares Amount  Capital
Earnings Equity
BALANCE, AT MARCH 30,1996 1,050 $1 $3,000
$6,059 $9,060

Net income -

- 588 588
BALANCE, AT MARCH 28,1997 1,050 $1 $3,000

$6,647 $9,648

See notes to financial statemel



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS,

INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 28,1997

(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended March 28, 1997

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

See notes to financial statemel

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Deferred income taxes

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Costs incurred in excess of billings
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred income, compensation & royalties
Income taxes payable

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property & equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under line of credit
Repayment on line of credit
Borrowings under long-term debt

Repayment on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF
CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

Cash paid during the year for interest expense



GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 28,1997

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Government System, Inc. ("GSI" or the "CompanyQvites international communications services andpcts primarily to Federal
Government agencies and is headquartered in Clyanitginia. GSI provides its services directlyrdlugh prime contracts or through
subcontracts to other prime contractors. The CompEaB9%-owned by Infonet Services Corporationdirdt), who consolidates GSl in their
financial statements.

The Company's principal customers are the DepattofdDefense, the Department of Transportation,&e&Services Administration, and
other Federal agencies.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates - The preparation of financial statement®nformity with generally accepted accountimmgiples requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosuir@atingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported ansoofitevenues and expenses during the reportingdoekctual results could differ from
those estimates.

Revenue Recognition - The company provides servinder fixed-price, cost-based, and time-and-maltedontracts. For fixed-price
contracts, income is recorded on the basis of $limated percentage of completion of services netd osses, if any, on fixed-price
contracts are recognized during the period in whiiehloss is determined. Fixed-price contracts irequanagement to estimate current and
future revenues and costs and the percentage &fawonplete on a periodic basis. These estimates hawaterial effect on the financial
statements and it is reasonably possible that dsaimgthese estimates will occur in the near téMoté 3). For cost-based contracts, income is
recorded by applying an estimated profit factocdsts as incurred, such factor being determinecbbyract provisions and prior experience.
For time-and-materials and other contracts, revémuecorded as the services or products are detivi® the customer at the contractual rates
for labor and other direct costs.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable inclufesunts under long-term contracts and subcontradisipally with the U.S.
Government, of $8,422,745 at March 28, 1997. Inetlioh this amount is $3,181,691 of work-in-procihsg has been billed in accordance
with the contract terms and delivery schedulefhiefRAA contract (Note 3). The Company believes &utiglly all accounts receivable to be
collectible within one year and no allowance foubltful accounts is necessary.

Costs Incurred in Excess of Billings - Costs inedrin excess of billings represent those costsild but, operate, and maintain the network
required by the FAA contract. These costs are @thtg operations as services are delivered onaxdriine item numbers (CLIN's) to the
customer and accepted.

Cash EquivalentsCash equivalents consist of highly liquid investitisepurchased with a maturity of less than threath® which are readi
convertible into cash.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company's finahinstruments that are exposed to concentratibiesedit risk consist primarily of its
cash equivalents, short-term investments, and teckdvables. The Company restricts investmenash@quivalents and short-term
investments to financial institutions with high ditestanding. Credit risk on trade receivables isimal as these amounts are due primarily
from agencies of the Federal Government.

Depreciation and Amortization - The cost of propend equipment, less applicable residual valsedepreciated over their useful lives,
generally on the, straight-line method, from theedhe specific asset is complete, installed andydor normal use, as follows:

Computers and software 2 years

Communications equipment 2 years

Furniture and equipment 2 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or useful lives

Income Taxes - Deferred income tax assets andifiabiare computed annually for differences betw# financial statement and income
tax bases of assets and liabilities that will resutaxable or deductible amounts in the futunectSdeferred income tax asset and liability
computations are based on enacted tax laws arslapfdicable to periods in which the differencesetpected to impact tax-able income. If
necessary, a valuation allowance is establisheeldioce deferred tax assets to the amount expexteglrealized. Income tax expense is the
sum of tax payable or refundable for the period thredeffect of any changes in deferred income $3ets and liabilities during the period.

3. COSTS INCURRED IN EXCESS OF BILLING



In September 1994, the Company entered into agan-gontract consisting of five base years anddjptéon years with the Department of
Transportation (DOT) to provide domestic and inéignal communication services under an infinitéveey, infinite quantity, fixed-price
contract. In March 1997, the Company submitted a&mnillion certified claim against the contract fmsts incurred and related profit due to
a change in scope of the original contract madiheyDOT. The basis for the claim is that the nekwthe Company has been required to
design, deliver, and manage far exceeded that widdhbeen specified in the contract. At March 2871 the accompanying balance sheet
includes approximately $11 million in costs incutia excess of billings related to this claim, regld by a reserve of $4 million for
uncollectible amounts.

Currently, the Company and the DOT are in negatiegtito settle this claim. Ultimately, the Compamrpects to settle this matter based upon
the terms and conditions of the contract and thisfand circumstances encountered in the execatitire contract. Management believes
the ultimate resolution of this matter will not leea& material adverse effect on the accompanyirapéiial statements.

4. RETIREMENT PLANS

Pensions - GSI participates in the Infonet Serviceporation (see Note 9) Pension Plan (the Planigh is a contributory defined benefit
pension plan in which substantially all domestiqéoygees are eligible to participate. The benebtstifie Plan are based on years of
participation and the employee's compensation theeentire period of participation in the Plan.

GSil's portion of the net periodic pension cost@ension plans includes the following componentgiousands):
1997

Service cost $ 132
Interest cost 88

Actual return on plan assets (193)
Net amortization and deferral 37

Net periodic pension cost $ 64

The following table sets forth the funded statud amounts recognized in the Company's balance §habbusands):

A ssets
Exceed Accumulated
Benefit Obligations
1997
Actuarial present value of
benefit obligations -
Vested benefit obligation $ 1,124
Nonvested benefit obligation 209
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 1,333
Projected benefit obligation $ 1,408
Plan assets at fair market value 2,070
Projected benefit obligation
less than plan assets (662)
Unrecognized items:
Net gain 698
Prepaid pension costs $ 36

Assumptions used in accounting
for the Company's plans were:

Discount or settlement rate 7.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.5%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 9.0%

Plan assets include mutual funds and short-termstmvent funds.

Other Postretirement Benefits - The Company pravitealth care and life insurance benefits for aedarrent retirees. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board issued Statement ohEiabAccounting Standards (SFAS) No. 106, "EmpteyAccounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions," which requires thoewal of certain postretirement benefits othentpansions, primarily health care and life
insurance, over the active service period of engidgy SFAS No. 106 also requires the recognitiantodinsition obligation based on 1



aggregate amount that would have been accruechkatdtement been applied in prior years.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 106 effective April995. Based on an actuarial study, the transghdigation is estimated at $130,626 at
March 28, 1997. The Company has determined thathligation will be amortized over a 20-year period

A summary of the components of postretirement nadienefits expense as recorded in the finanasdstents for the year ended March 28,
1997, is as follows.

19 97
Service cost $
Interest cost on accumulated
benefit obligation 7
Actual return on plan assets -
Amortization of transition amount 7
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ 14
The funded status of the plans at March 28, 199&s ifollows:
P ostretirement
Medical
B enefits Plan

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

Vested $(60,993)
Nonvested -

Accumulated benefit obligations (60,993)
Effect of estimated future pay increases -

Projected benefit obligation (60,993)
Fair value of plan assets -

Unfunded projected benefit obligation (60,993)
Unrecognized net gain (100,778)
Unrecognized net (asset) obligation at transition 130,626

Unrecognized prior-service cost

Accrued postretirement medical benefit cost $(31,145)

A discount rate of 7.50% was used to determingtbgected benefit obligation at March 28, 1997. &heual healthcare cost trend rates are
assumed to decrease at 1% per year from 13% intb9®% in 2003 for employees under the age of 68,feom 12% to 6% for employees
over 65 for the same period.

401(k) Plan - The Company also maintains for theefieof all its employees a deferred compensatimangement established under Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Employees dedgr up to 15% of their pretax salary. The Compaillycontribute 75% of employees'
contributions up to 3% of employee's pretax salBuyring the fiscal year ended March 28, 1997, thenfany contributions were $211,263.

5. INCOME TAXES

The provision for taxes on income consists of thiWing (in thousands):

1997
Current portion:
Federal $ 1,455
State 200
Deferred portion (1,345)
$ 310

A reconciliation of the Company's statutory anaefiive U.S. federal income tax expense and rates fsllows (dollars in thousand:



1997

Income tax expense at statutory rate $ 305

State taxes net of federal benefit 40
Other (35)
$ 310

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant deferred tax assets at March1®87 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Valuation reserve on costs

incurred in excess of billings  $1,532, 000
Depreciation 125, 000
Other 67, 000

Deferred tax asset $1,724, 000

6. COMMITMENTS

Debt - The Company had a line of credit of $10 imnillwith Infonet Services Corporation, a common preferred shareholder of the
Company (Infonet), which was payable on demand.liNeewas paid in full during 1997. As of March 2897, the Company had no
borrowings outstanding on this line of credit.

Long-Term Debt - Long-term debt consists of notegable that are collateralized by equipment thdtdraoriginal cost of approximately
$14,000,000 (see Note 3) and is payable in moritiskallments through fiscal year 2000. The net bealke is included in costs incurred in
excess of billings at March 28, 1997. Interestdsdd on the three month LIBOR rate (5.805% at Mag;H.997) plus a fixed percentage
(usually between 1.5% -2%). Long-term debt consifthe following (in thousands):

199 7
Diamond Lease $34 45
Diamond Lease 2,9 25
General Electric Capital Corporation 3,0 42
Fifth 3rd Bank 2,6 17
12,0 29
Less: Current maturities on long-tern debt (4,3 58)
Long-term debt $7,6 71
Maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in tisands):

1998 $ 4,358

1999 4,358

2000 3,313

$12,029

Leases - Minimum fixed payments required for thet fiee years and thereafter under operating leaseffect at March 28, 1997, are as
follows(amounts in thousands):

Operating Leases
Real Estate Equipment

1998 $ 813 $51

1999 534 51
2000 38 51
2001 - 51
2002 - 7



Rental expense under noncancellable operatingddasthe use of property and equipment amounteghpsoximately $1,079,000 in 1997.
7. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has a nonqualified deferred income folaamployees earning over a prescribed amoumticRents may defer receipt of
compensation, which is held by the Company in tamst is invested in accordance with the particigascommendations. The investments
are accounted for at fair market value with anysitpents to market made through the deferred cosagien liability. At March 28, 1997,
the deferred compensation investment balance was,381. The related deferred compensation liabiig $959,777.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company provides communications and other stigpovices to Infonet. For the year ended Marchl287, the Company earned
revenues of $2,937,729 from subcontracts with lefoAt March 28, 1997, the accounts receivablertta@alue from Infonet was $237,933.

The Company's line of credit with Infonet was $0/rch 28, 1997. The interest expense for thedineredit was $244,045 for the year
ended March 28, 1997.

9. CAPITAL STOCK
Capital Stock is comprised of the following elensent

Number of
Shares Issued
and Outstanding

Class A Common 390
Class B Common 390
Class C Common 220
Accumulative Preferred 50

Total shares issued and outstanding 1,050

Common Stock shares include the right to eleabfathe Directors at the Company. All dividends a&mtnomic benefits, if any, accrue to the
Preferred Stockholder.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT - CLAIM

On July 9, 1997, the Department of Transportatssnéd a contract modification to settle the $15IBom certified claim brought by the
Company in March 1997. The contract modificatiocrégased the funding by $12.5 million and was sigffitto cover the full amount of the
claim brought by the Company.

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENT - SALE

On November 1, 1997, the Company sold substantidlligf its net assets to CACI International Inc &pproximately $33.5 millior



SEPTEMBER 30, 1997

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET <F1>

FORMA

ADJUSTMENTS PRO FORMA

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash

3,484,000 $ 3,484,0
Accounts receivable, net

8,700,000 <F2><F3> 80,087,000
Income taxes receivable

207,000 <F2> 355,000
Deferred contract cost

5,167,000 <F2><F3> 5,167,000
Deferred income taxes

112,000 112,000
Prepaid expenses
138,000 <F2> 3,221,000

Total current assets
14,212,000 92,426,000

Fixed assets, net of accumulated
depreciation & amortization
302,000 <F2> 11,019,000

Accounts receivable, long term

7,207,000 7,207,0
Goodwill, net

22,712,000 <F2> 37,875,000
Deferred income taxes

672,000 672,000

Other assets
56,000 <F2><F3> 4,424,000

TOTAL ASSETS
37,282,000 153,623,000

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable

3,841,000 <F2><F3> 19,897,000
Accrued compensation & benefits

12,481,000 12,481,
Income taxes payable

1,240,000 0 <F3><F4> 1,240,0

Deferred income taxes
4,860,000 4,860,0

Total current liabilities
3,841,000 38,478,000

Long-term liabilities
Notes payable

33,724,000 <F4> 40,724,000
Deferred rent expense

1,543,000 1,543,0
Deferred income taxes

138,000 138,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES
37,565,000 80,883,000

PRO

HISTORICAL

00
71,387,000 $

148,000

0

3,083,000

00
15,163,000

4,368,000

16,056,000

000

00

7,000,000

00

43,318,000



Stockholders' equity 73,023,000

(283,000) 72,740,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $116,341,000
$37,282,000 $153,623,000

<F1> Balances used were from CACI's quarterly statés at September 30, 1997 and GSl's quartetBnséamts at June 28, 1997.

<F2> Represents the preliminary allocation of thechase price of $33,522,000 to all of the tang#sigets, liabilities and intangible assets of
Government Systems, Inc. ("GSI"). The excess optirehase price over the fair value of the nettassmjuired was estimated at $23,000
and will be amortized on a straight line basis &@wears. The preliminary purchase price allocatiay change during the year ending June
30, 1998 as additional information concerning theasset valuation is obtained.

<F3> Adjustments to GSI's June 28, 1997 balances made to reflect the fair value of the actuahbaés that were acquired. Cash of
$73,000, deferred and payable taxes of $358,0@8smmyable of $10,271,000, and deferred and otivapensation of $1,601,000 were
eliminated completely. Accounts receivable wererglased by $1,000,000, costs incurred in excessliobbwere decreased by $7,410,000,
and other assets were decreased by $630,000.

<F4> Reflects the estimated increase in the lingredit to purchase GSI and the resulting incréagagerest expense of approximately
$500,000 less $243,000 of GSl interest expe



CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERA TIONS <F1>

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1997

PRO
FORMA
HISTORICAL
ADJUSTMENTS PRO FORMA
REVENUE $70,669,000 $
8,180,000 <F2> $78,849,000
COST AND EXPENSES
Direct costs 38,037,000
5,955,000 <F2> 43,992,000
Indirect cost & selling expenses 26,439,000
1,707,000 <F2><F3> 28,146,000
Depreciation & amortization 2,025,000
478,000 <F2> 2,503,000
Total operating expenses 66,501,000
8,140,000 74,641,000
4,168,000
40,000 4,208,000
Interest expense 245,000
500,000 <F2> 745,000
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 3,923,000
(460,000) 3,463,000
INCOME TAXES 1,491,000
(177,000) <F2><F4> 1,314,000
NET INCOME $ 2,432,000 $
(283,000) $ 2,149,000
EARNINGS PER COMMON AND
COMMON EQUIVALENT SHARE $0.22
$(0.03) $0.19
AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES AND
EQUIVALENT SHARES OUTSTANDING 11,075,000

11,075,000 11,075,000

<F1> The statement of operations was based on GAi€tal year end at June 30, 1997 and GSI's fiszal end at March 28, 1997.
<F2> Represents the historical results of GSlHierquarter ended September 30, 1997.

<F3> Adjustments include an estimated $500,00@tefést expense on the line of credit, a reduafd?43,000 of GSI interest expense,
$288,000 of goodwill amortization.

<F4> To record $207,000 of tax benefit to reflembdwill amortization expense and additional inteeepense



JUNE 30, 1997

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET <F1>

FORMA

ADJUSTMENTS PRO FORMA

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash

2,015,000 $ 2,015,0
Accounts receivable, net

8,760,000 <F2><F3> 79,603,000
Income taxes receivable

991,000 3,975,000
Deferred contract cost

5,167,000 <F2><F3> 5,167,000
Deferred income taxes

114,000 114,000
Prepaid expenses
149,000 <F2> 3,725,000

Total current assets
15,067,000 94,599,000

Fixed assets, net of accumulated
depreciation & amortization
381,000 <F2> 11,986,000

Accounts receivable, long term

7,015,000 7,015,0
Goodwill, net

21,850,000 <F2> 37,309,000
Deferred income taxes

763,000 763,000

Other assets
68,000 <F2><F3> 4,554,000

TOTAL ASSETS
37,366,000 156,226,000

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Notes payable

0 0 0
Accounts payable

4,003,000 <F2><F3> 23,857,000
Accrued compensation & benefits

12,527,000 <F2> 12,527,
Income taxes payable

0 0 <F3><F4> 0
Deferred income taxes

5,137,000 5,137,0

Total current liabilities
4,003,000 41,521,000

Long-term liabilities

Notes payable

34,262,000 <F4> 43,062,000
Deferred rent expense
1,627,000 1,627,0

Deferred income taxes
141,000 141,000

PRO

HISTORICAL

00
70,843,000 $

2,984,000

0

3,576,000

00
15,459,000

4,486,000

19,854,000

000

8,800,000

00



TOTAL LIABILITIES 48,086,000

38,265,000 86,351,000
Stockholders' equity 70,774,000
(899,000) 69,875,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $118,860,000
$37,366,000 $156,226,000

<F1> Balances were from CACI's fiscal year enduaeJ30, 1997 and GSI's fiscal year end at Marcti287.

<F2> Represents the preliminary allocation of thechase price of $33,522,000 to all of the tang#sigets, liabilities and intangible assets of
Government Systems, Inc. ("GSI"). The excess optlrehase price over the fair value of the nettassequired was estimated at $23,000
and will be amortized on a straight line basis R@years. The preliminary purchase price allocatimy change during the year ending June
30, 1998 as additional information concerning theasset valuation is obtained.

<F3> Adjustments to GSl's March 28, 1997 balancexewnade to reflect the fair value of the actuéees that were acquired. Cash of
$2,800,000, deferred and payable taxes of $2,3811les payable of $12,029,000, and deferred #ret oompensation of $1,276,000 were
eliminated completely. Accounts receivable weregased by $337,000, costs incurred in excess lafdivere decreased by $8,927,000,
other assets were decreased by $950,000, and asq@ayable were decreased by $2,307,000.

<F4> Reflects the estimated increase in the lineredit to purchase GSI and the resulting incréaggerest expense of approximately
$2,000,000 less $672,000 of GSI interest expe



CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERA TIONS <F1>

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

PRO
FORMA
HISTORICAL
ADJUSTMENTS PRO FORMA
REVENUE $272,984,000
$38,937,000 <F2> $311,921,000
COST AND EXPENSES
Direct costs 148,433,000
29,191,000 <F2> 177,624,000
Indirect cost & selling expenses 99,808,000
7,445,000 <F2><F3> 107,253,000
Depreciation & amortization 6,852,000
1,881,000 <F2> 8,733,000
Total operating expenses 255,093,000
38,517,000 293,610,000
17,891,000
420,000 18,311,000
Interest expense 1,105,000
2,000,000 <F2> 3,105,000
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 16,786,000
(1,580,000) 15,206,000
INCOME TAXES 6,714,000
(681,000) <F2><F4> 6,033,000
NET INCOME $ 10,072,000 $
(899,000) $ 9,173,000
EARNINGS PER COMMON AND
COMMON EQUIVALENT SHARE $0.91
$(0.08) $0.83
AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES AND
EQUIVALENT SHARES OUTSTANDING 11,005,000

11,005,000 11,005,000

<F1> State of operations was based on CACI's figeat end at June 30, 1997 and GSI's fiscal yedaceat March 28, 1997.
<F2> Represents the historical results of GSltierquarter ended March 28, 1997.

<F3> Adjustments include estimated interest expen$2,000,000 on the line of credit, eliminatiort672,000 of GSI interest expense, and
$1,150,000 of goodwill amortization.

<F4> To record $991,000 of tax benefit to refleapdwill amortization expense and additional inteegense



SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the Company has duly causeddiisrt to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

CACI International Inc
(Registrant)

Jeffrey P. Elefante
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel & Corporate Secretary

Dat ed: January 14, 1998



ARTICLE 5

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM FORM 10Q FOR THE PERIOD
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1997, AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS\HIRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

PERIOD TYPE 3 MOS
FISCAL YEAR END JUN 30 199
PERIOD END SEP 30 199
CASH 3,484,001
SECURITIES 0
RECEIVABLES 74,462,00
ALLOWANCES (3,075,00C
INVENTORY 0
CURRENT ASSET 78,214,00
PP&E 32,575,64
DEPRECIATION (21,859,154
TOTAL ASSETS 116,341,00
CURRENT LIABILITIES 34,637,00
BONDS 7,000,001
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0
PREFERREL 0
COMMON 1,426,001
OTHER SE 71,597,00
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 116,341,00
SALES 0
TOTAL REVENUES 70,669,00
CGS 0
TOTAL COSTS 38,037,00
OTHER EXPENSES 28,165,00
LOSS PROVISION 299,99¢
INTEREST EXPENSE 245,00(
INCOME PRETAX 3,923,001
INCOME TAX 1,491,00!
INCOME CONTINUING 2,432,001
DISCONTINUED 0
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 2,432,001
EPS PRIMARY $0.22
EPS DILUTED $0.22
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ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

ACQUISITION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated asQ@xctober 31, 1997, by and among Government Systhms a Delaware
corporation ("GSI"), CACI International Inc, a Delare corporation ("CACI"), and CACI, Inc., a Delawa
corporation ("CASub") and a wholly-owned subsidiafyCACI.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS CACI provides information systems and sssifor U.S. Government and
other customers; and

WHEREAS GSI delivers global communications serviaed solutions to the desktop for U.S. Governmeastaners, Government prime
contractors, and other
customers; and

WHEREAS CACI wishes to purchase from GSI, and GBhes to sell to CACI, the
business of GSI, consisting of certain assets dff@&inafter defined, together with assumptiocertain liabilities of GSI hereinafter
defined;

GSl, CACI and CASub hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
PURCHASE OF ASSETS

1.1 Purchase and Sale. Upon and subject to thes tnoh conditions hereof, at the Closing (as hefieindefined), GSI shall sell, transfer and
assign to CASub, and CASub shall purchase and cffom GSl, all right, title and interest in ardthe following described tangible and
intangible assets of GSI (the "Assets") other tt@nExcluded Assets, as hereinafter defined, ih ease free and clear of all liens, charges,
security interests and other encumbrances excefhidd'Assumed Liabilities" (as hereinafter defihed

1.1.1 All items set forth on Exhibit 1.1.1 (collaetly the "Inventory");

1.1.2 Machinery, equipment, tools, furniture, fods, vehicles, related parts and supplies and taheible assets owned by GSI and all
related computer programs, software and firmwareemhhby GSI and used in connection with the mainte@ar operation of the business of
GSI, to the extent set forth on Exhibit 1.1.2 (eotlvely, "Tangible Assets");

1.1.3 All rights of GSI, whether now existing omeafter arising, against manufacturers, vendosibcontractors with respect to any of the
Inventory or Tangible Assets or any part thereaf|uding, without limitation, all product warrangi¢ghereon and all rights set forth in Exhibit
1.1.3;

1.1.4 All books and records or parts thereof utkercontrol of GSI (collectively, the "Asset Docum') relating to the Assets and the
Intellectual Property (as hereinafter defined)|udang, without limitation, price lists, customenavendor lists, historical sales data, payroll
data and other accounting and business recorés dild data relating to producing and selling thaxlg and services of GSI, maps, plans,
diagrams, process and notebooks, specificatiosistdsults, diagrams, flow charts, blueprints, dng®, schematics, manuals, maintenance
logs, specifications and other documents, boolsersaledgers and records, including, without Biidn, the items set forth in Exhibit 1.1.4;

1.1.5 All advances, prepaid expenses, other prepaigrand related rights paid or obtained in conoretith the Assets (collectively, the
"Prepaid Expenses"), including, without limitatidhe items set forth in Exhibit 1.1.5;

1.1.6 All rights, registrations and applications tlee trademarks, service marks and trade namdsrtiein Exhibit 1.1.6, all good will related
thereto, all licensed software, and all know-hoapyights, inventions and trade secrets and alstegions and applications for the
registration thereof (collectively, the "IntelleaetlProperty"), in each case relating to or usedseful in connection with the Assets or the
business of GSI, including, without limitation, tihems set forth in Exhibit 1.1.6;

1.1.7 All rights and interests in, to and undeledises, contracts, licenses and other agreenedrfteth in Exhibit 1.1.7 (collectively, the
"Assigned Contracts");

1.1.8 All orders, deposits and payments set fortBxhibit 1.1.8 (collectively, the "Orders"); and

1.1.8 All rights of GSI, whether now existing omeafter arising, against manufacturers, vendosibcontractors with respect to any of the
Assets or any part thereof, including, without liaion, all guarantees and product and other whesissued in connection with the
manufacture, sale or repair of the Assets, inclydivithout limitation, the items set forth in Exhtith.1.9.

1.2 Excluded Assets. None of the items listed ihikix 1.2 is being sold, assigned or otherwisedfamed to CASuk



1.3 Assumption of Liabilities. CACI and CASub heyeigree to assume and perform the Assumed Liasiliihe "Assumed Liabilities" shall
mean (a) the current liabilities listed in Exhibi8, (b) GSI's obligations under the Orders, paytroeperformance of which is due after the
Closing and which relate to goods to be deliveneskeovices to be performed after the Closing afp@&@!'s obligations under the Assigned
Contracts, excluding the obligations describedenti®n 1.3.1.1.

1.3.1 Except for the Assumed Liabilities, CACI &addSub are assuming no liabilities of GSI or anyeotherson or entity in connection with
this transaction. Without limiting the generalitfjtbe foregoing, GSI shall be solely responsiblegfayment of all amounts at any time owing
by GSI with respect to the business, operationmaperty of GSI, both before and after the Closimlgether accrued or contingent, known or
unknown, other than the Assumed Liabilities. CA@¢afically assumes no liability for, and GSI spiexgilly retains sole responsibility for,
the following, regardless of when discovered oed&ssl:

1.3.1.1 Obligations under the Assigned Contradssnay as a result of any breach of any term oraefault by GSI occurring before the
Closing;

1.3.1.2 All medical, dental, life insurance, workmsecompensation and other pension and welfarefibebégations under any Benefit Plan
for all hourly and salaried employees of GSI whonieated employment or retired before the Closind all such obligations for claims
under any Benefit Plan that were incurred or (witbpect to workmen's compensation) injuries thatiwed before the Closing;

1.3.1.3 Any warranty or other claim relating to dedalelivered or services performed by GSI befoeeGlosing; and

1.3.1.4 Any claim relating to failure to comply beé the Closing with any Environmental Permit oviEonmental Law (as hereinafter
defined) or relating to any Environmental Contartiora(as hereinafter defined), or use, disposalischarge of any Materials of
Environmental Concern (as hereinafter defined) By & its lessees, agents or representatives, imeguor in existence on or before the
Closing.

1.4 Instruments of Transfer. The transfer of theeis to be transferred to CASub at the Closind bleatffected by bills of sale, assignments
and the other instruments of transfer as shalktearto CASub full title to the Assets free andaclef all liens, charges, security interests and
other encumbrances whatsoever except the Assunaddities, all of which documents shall be substdlytin the form attached hereto as
Exhibit 1.4.

1.5 Purchase Price. CACI shall pay to GSI, fortthasfer of the Assets, a total purchase pricevegrity-Eight Million Dollars ($28,000,000)
(the "Purchase Price"), allocated in the mannecipd in Exhibit 1.5. The Purchase Price shalpbgable at the Closing by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to an account specifiedriting by GSI.

1.6 Taxes. GSI shall pay all sales, use, transfdooumentary taxes, or stamps and filing feesrayigut of or relating to the sale of the As:
to CACI hereunder that are imposed as of the alplinany taxing authority.

1.7 Closing.

1.7.1 The closing of the purchase and sale of gses (the "Closing”) shall occur simultaneouslihuwie execution of this Agreement. All
transactions occurring at the Closing shall be dekta be effective as of 12:01 a.m. on Novembé©®y.

1.7.2 At the Closing,

1.7.2.1 GSI shall deliver to CACI:

1.7.2.1.1 Bills of sale, assignments and otheruns¢nts of transfer of title to the Assets in sabstlly the form set forth in Exhibit 1.7.2.1.1;
1.7.2.1.2 Licenses to use GSl's intellectual priyp@s defined therein) in substantially the foreh forth in Exhibit 1.7.2.1.2;

1.7.2.1.3 A certification, as described in TreasRegulation Section 1.1445-2(b)(2), to the effeet tGSI is not a "foreign person" within the
meaning of Section 1445(a) of the Internal Revebode of 1986, as amended (the "Code");

1.7.2.1.4 Agreed forms of assignments of the AssigBontra cts and consents to such assignments;

1.7.2.1.5 All originals and records of the Orders;

1.7.2.1.6 The Asset Documents; and

1.7.2.1.7 The documents required by Section 5ztdelivered by GSI as a condition to the obligatiof CACI and CASub hereunder.

1.7.2.2 CACI shall deliver to GS



1.7.2.2.1 CACI and CASub's written assumption af agreement to perform the Assumed Liabilitiesubssantially the form set forth in
Exhibit 1.7.2.2.1;

1.7.2.2.2 The payment required by Section 1.5; and
1.7.2.2.3 The documents required by Section 5i:tdelivered by CACI and CASub as a condition td'$s&bligations hereunder.

1.8 Working Capital. At the Closing, CACI shall pyGSI by wire transfer of immediately availablmdls to an account specified by GSI
Five Million Five Hundred Twentyfwo Thousand Dollars ($5,522,000) (the Working @rayment), which payment is based in part o
trial balance set forth as Exhibit 1.8, and in merthe agreement of the parties that the net \&ltige Assets at Closing (the value of the
Assets less the value of the Assumed Liabilitisgleven Million Two Hundred Ninety-Four Thousandirs ($11,294,000).

1.8.1 CASub shall provide GSI with assistance nexguby GSI to complete a formal closing of the ok GSiI for the period ending Octol
31, 1997 within thirty (30) days of the Closing.

1.8.2 Within ten (10) days of completion of thesitey of GSI's books for the period ending Octoleri®97, representatives of CACI and
GSiI shall confer and, based on the value of thetsand the Assumed Liabilities as of October 39,71(as modified by the following
understanding: the parties agree that the valtieeofAssets and Assumed Liabilities shall be deteeohin accordance with generally accef
accounting principles, except with respect to thkie of Work-In-Process Inventory Balance on Cartthéo. DCA200-94D-0089 (the

"ADTN Contract"), which shall be stated at the eabf future billings for equipment already purclthéer that contract, less an allowance for
fifteen percent profit; that amount is estimated¢o$5,130,000 as at September 26, 1997), agreeaipet value of the Assets at Closing (the
Final Working Capital Value). If the Final Workir@apital Value exceeds Eleven Million Two Hundreahéty-Four Thousand Dollars
($11,294,000), CACI shall pay to GSI an amount étputhe amount by which such Final Working Capifalue exceeds Eleven Million Ty
Hundred Ninety-Four Thousand Dollars ($11,294,0G0pn the other hand, the Final Working Capitalye is less than Eleven Million Two
Hundred Ninety-Four Thousand Dollars ($11,294,088) shall pay to CACI an amount equal to the ambynwhich the Final Working
Capital Value is less than Eleven Million Two HuedmNinety-Four Thousand Dollars ($11,294,000). Aayment required to be paid
pursuant to this Section 1.8.2 shall be made bg tansfer of immediately available funds to anoact specified by the payee within ten (
days of agreement on the Final Working Capital ¥alu

ARTICLE 2
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF GSI
GSl represents and warrants to CACI as follows:

2.1 Corporate Status of GSI. GSl is a corporatiay drganized, validly existing and in good stamdimder the laws of Delaware. GSl is ¢
qualified to do business as a foreign corporatiwhia in good standing in all jurisdictions in whithe character of the properties owned,
leased or operated by GSI and used in the busaf&3SI or the nature of the business transacte@®lymakes such qualification necessary,
except where failure to be so qualified would natda materially adverse effect on the Assets d8@¥s ability to purchase or use the as
as contemplated by this Agreement.

2.2 Authority for Agreement. GSI has the full corgi® power to own, lease and operate the Assetsreently owned, leased, operated and
conducted and to execute, deliver, and performAgieement and the other transactions contemplegegin and to carry out its obligations
hereunder. The execution, delivery and performarfitkis Agreement and the other transactions copla&t@d hereby have been duly and
validly authorized by the Board of Directors of Gfid the stockholders of GSI, and no other corpgraiceedings on the part of GSI remain
necessary to authorize the execution, deliverypmrtbrmance of this Agreement and the other tramgeccontemplated hereby. This
Agreement and the related documents have beeredatiuted and delivered by GSI and are legal, \aditibinding obligations of GSI
enforceable against GSI in accordance with thejpeetive terms except as enforceability may bedidhby bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization or other laws affecting generally émforcement of creditors' rights and except éoetktent that courts may award money
damages rather than specific performance of cani@hprovisions.

2.3 No Default or Violation. The execution, deliyend performance of this Agreement and the otlasistictions contemplated hereby do
and will not (a) conflict with or result in a vidlan of any provision of the Certificate of Incorption or By-Laws or other organizational
documents of GSlI, or (b) with or without the giviafinotice or the lapse of time, or both, confligth, or result in any violation or breach of
or constitute a default under, or (except as otlsrwontemplated by this Agreement) require thesenhof any other party to, or result in ¢
right to accelerate or the creation of any liergrgle or encumbrance pursuant to, or right of teatron under, any provision of any note,
mortgage, indenture, lease, agreement or otheumsnt, permit, concession, grant, franchise, Beejudgment, order, decree, statute, law,
ordinance, rule or regulation that could have aematy adverse effect on the Assets or CASub'Btald purchase or use the Assets as
contemplated by this Agreement. Except as otheraaseemplated by this Agreement, no authorizatimsent, approval, license, order, or
permit of, or declaration of, or filing with or rio¢ to, any governmental body or authority or atheo person or entity is necessary for the
execution and delivery of this Agreement by GSithar consummation by GSI of the other transactiaméeznplated hereby.

2.4 Financial Statements. GSI has previously flnetsto CACI true and complete copies of its finahstatements for each of the three fiscal
years ended in March 1995, 1996, and 1997 (the Fa®incial Statements"). Each of the balance sliegtsded in the GSI Financi



Statements (including any related notes and schejitdirly presents the consolidated financial fimsiof GSI as of its date and the other
financial statements included in the GSI FinanS8iatements (including any related notes and schejlfdirly present the consolidated res
of operations or other information included thereirGSI for the periods or as of the dates theseirforth, in each case in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles consisteqplied during the periods involved.

2.5 Absence of Material Adverse Changes and Unmlied Liabilities. Since March 28, 1997, there hatsoccurred or arisen, whether or not
in the ordinary course of business: (a) any mdtadaerse change in the business, operations saéseincial condition, results of operations
or properties of GSI, or (b) any event, conditiorstate of facts of any character that might maligrand adversely affect the Assets. GSI has
no material liabilities or obligations, fixed, aged, contingent or otherwise, that relate to thee#dsand are not fully reflected or provided for
on, or disclosed in the notes to, the consolidatddnce sheet for the fiscal year ended March 287 Included in the GSI Financial
Statements (the "1997 Balance Sheet"), excepiafai)ilies and obligations incurred in or as a tesfithe ordinary course of business since
March 28, 1997, none of which individually or irethggregate has been or is materially adversestAgdbets, (b) liabilities and obligations
permitted by or provided for or contemplated by thgreement and (c) liabilities and obligationsctised on the Exhibits delivered
hereunder.

2.6 Assets Other Than Assigned Contracts.

2.6.1 GSI has good record and marketable titlerte, valid leasehold interest in, all of the AssBisne of the Assets is subject to any
mortgage, pledge, lien, security interest, leasgttoer encumbrance.

2.6.2 The Inventory consists of items of a quarditd quality usable or saleable in the normal aofdusiness of GSI. All plant, equipment
and personal property included in the Assets agood operating condition and repair.

2.6.3 GSl is not in material violation of any lasggulation or ordinance (including, without limitat, laws, regulations or ordinances relating
to building, zoning, environmental, city plannignd use or similar matters) relating to its leagesperty located at 14200 Park Meadow
Drive, Suite 200, Chantilly, Virginia. There are pmceedings materially affecting the present turiuse of such property for the purpose
for which it is used or the purpose for which itrisended to be used. All buildings, structures fixttires used by GSI at such property are in
good operating condition and repair and are inswiglll coverages that are usual and customary foitesi properties and similar businesses.

2.6.4 The Assets constitute substantially all efalssets used by GSI prior to the Closing in timelgot of its business. The Assets when
delivered at the Closing shall be in a conditioffisient to enable CASub to utilize the Assetslasytwere utilized by GSI prior to the
Closing. No written notice has been received by f&@h any insurance company that has issued aypwiith respect to any of the Assets or
from any board of fire underwriters (or other bakercising similar functions) claiming any defeactsleficiencies or requesting the
performance of any repairs, alterations or othekwelating to the Assets.

2.7 Assigned Contracts. GSI has delivered to CAGhade available to CACI a true and complete cdpgach of the Assigned Contracts
all amendments thereto. All Assigned Contractsrafall force and effect, and GSI has not receiaeg notice of default, nor is it in default,
nor does any condition exist which with notice lue tapse of time, or both, will render GSI in défaunder any of the Assigned Contracts,
other than defaults that would not materially img@ASub's ability to assume, perform and receieettbnefits of the Assigned Contracts and
except as the parties have previously discusséddresipect to the Globalstar contract number GSO&83t. Neither

GSI nor any of its directors, officers, employaepresentatives, or other agents has any knowledgeason to believe or suspect that GSI
will be unable to assign the Assigned Contracthat any other party, including, without limitaticthe Government, will not approve or
consent to the assignment of any of the Assignatr&@cts or will otherwise prohibit or materiallystact the assignment of any of the
Assigned Contracts. To the best of GSI's knowlettgepther parties to the Assigned Contracts aoeinpliance with all material terms and
conditions of the Assigned Contracts, and no pifudyeto has notified GSI of an intention to terntnar materially change the nature of its
transaction or relationship with GSI or CACI thender.

2.8 Compliance with Applicable Law. GSI has allugsife licenses, permits and certificates fronfaiign, federal, state and local authori
necessary to utilize the Assets as presently etiliand to own, lease and operate the Assetsharilsiness of GSI which relates to the
Assets is not being conducted in violation of appglecable law, statute, ordinance, regulation, rijddgment, decree, order, permit, license,
concession, grant or other authorization of anyrtoouof any governmental entity or authority, imyacase where the violation or failure to
comply, individually or in the aggregate, would bavmaterial adverse effect on the Assets.

2.9 Litigation.

2.9.1 There is no investigation, inquiry or revieyany governmental entity or authority with redpgecGSI pending or, to the best of GSI's
knowledge, threatened, nor has any governmenti#y é@mlicated to GSI an intention to conduct themsaand

2.9.2 There is no claim, action, suit, arbitratitaior dispute, investigation or proceeding of kimgd, pending or, to the best of GSlI's
knowledge, threatened, at law or in equity, beforg court, arbitrator, governmental entity or auiigpand there is no order, writ, injunction,
decree or judgment of any court, arbitrator, gowezntal entity or authority, that involves, affeotsrelates to the Assets that either singly or
in the aggregate may have any material adverseteffethe Assets.

2.10 Tax Matters. GSI has filed all federal, stidieal and foreign income, corporate excise andqgibtax returns and reports required to



filed by it or on its behalf. All taxes shown bycsureturns to be due and payable have been paicaeflected as a liability on the GSI
Financial Statements. All tax returns of GSI thatérbeen examined by any governmental authoritesianuary 1, 1994 are identified on
Exhibit 2.10 along with the respective authorit3@ has been provided with a copy of all returnd any assessments resulting from such
examinations and all assessments, penalties ar@sthave been paid in full. GSI is not a partsrig tax indemnity or tax sharing
agreement. GSI has informed CACI of a pending clayn@ S| for collection from the Federal Aviation #dhistration of sales taxes in the
aggregate amount of approximately $586,000. GStamss to CACI collection of the amount determinedbé due; and, in the event that
CACl is required to pursue or determines in theege of CACI's reasonable judgement that it iglpni for CACI to pursue collection
efforts itself, GSI undertakes to pay or to reirdsu€ACI for the reasonable costs of collectio#l elects to pursue collection, CACI will
cooperate with GSl's effort in good faith and anmaterial out-of-pocket cost to CACI.

2.11 Employee Benefit Plans; Compliance with ERISA.

2.11.1 Exhibit 2.11 sets forth all Employee BenBfans and Benefit Arrangements that are sponsmredntributed to by GSI or any of its
ERISA Affiliates covering GSI's employees or forneenployees. True and complete copies of all suchl@ee Benefit Plans and Benefit
Arrangements have been delivered to CACI.

2.11.2 With respect to each Employee Pension BeRkfin sponsored, maintained or contributed to By @ any ERISA Affiliate, or with
respect to which GSI or any ERISA Affiliate prevéty had an obligation to contribute:

(a) No such plan has been terminated so as tocubjeectly or indirectly, any assets of GSI ar ERISA Affiliates to any liability,
contingent or otherwise, or the imposition of aieng under Title IV of ERISA;

(b) No proceeding has been initiated or threatdayeainy person, including the PBGC, to terminate sugh plans;
(c) No liability to the PBGC has been incurred,;

(d) No "reportable event," as defined in Sectiod316f ERISA (to the extent that the reporting offlsevent to the PBGC has not been
waived) has occurred and is continuing with respeeainy such plan.

2.11.3 Neither GSI nor any of its ERISA Affiliathas at any time been obliged to contribute to amjti¥mployer Plan.

2.11.4 Neither GSI nor any of its ERISA Affiliateponsors or has previously sponsored, maintairedributed to or incurred an obligation
to contribute to any Employee Benefit Plan thawjites benefits described in

Section 3(1) of ERISA to any former employee oireet of GSI or any ERISA Affiliate of any of themxcept as required under Part 6 of
Title | of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code.

2.11.5 Each Benefit Plan has at all times prioeteebeen maintained in all material respects im@tance with all applicable laws. GSI and
its ERISA Affiliates have made full and timely pagnt of all amounts required to be contributed uniderterms of any Benefit Plan that is a
profit sharing or stock bonus plan designed to dgmjith the qualification requirements of Code S$ect401(a).

2.11.6 Each Benefit Plan that is intended to qualifder Section 401(a) of the Code is the subjeatfavorable determination letter from the
IRS, a copy of which has been delivered to CACt,da GSI's knowledge, nothing has occurred whiely neasonably be expected to impair
such determination or otherwise adversely affegttéx-qualified status of such Benefit Plan.

2.12 Employment-Related Matters. To the extentitbsets are affected (a) GSl is in compliance withgplicable laws respecting
employment, consulting, employment practices, walgesrs, and terms and conditions of employment3®I is not a party to any collecti
bargaining agreement or other contract or agreemigintany labor organization or other representatiany of the employees GSI; (c) there
is no labor strike, dispute, slowdown, work stopmdgckout or other labor controversy in effecgttls pending or, to the best of GSI's
knowledge, threatened against or otherwise affgsiBl, and GSI has not experienced any labor ceatsy within the past three years; (d)
no labor representation question exists or has t#sed respecting any of the employees of GSIG&) has not closed any plant or facility,
effectuated any layoffs of employees or implemerteyl early retirement, separation or window progedrany time from or after January 1,
1991 except, in each case, actions involving ncentizain ten (10) employees at any one time, no&&iglanned or announced any action or
program for the future with respect to which GS$ bamay have any material liability; and (f) GSin compliance with its obligations
pursuant to the Worker Adjustment and Retrainingfi¢ation Act of 1988, and all other notificatiand bargaining obligations arising under
any collective bargaining agreement or statutdirgjdao employment.

2.13 Environmental.

2.13.1 To the extent the Assets are affected afitetbest of GSI's knowledge, (a) GSl is in matedanpliance with all applicable
Environmental Laws (as defined in Section 6.1),GIS) has not received any communication (writteoraf), whether from a governmental
authority, employee, or any other person that aleéfat GSI is not in material compliance, (c) ¢h&re no circumstances that may prevent or
interfere with material compliance in the futuradgd) all permits and other governmental authéions currently held by GSI pursuant to
Environmental Laws are in full force and effect aredother permits are required by G



2.13.2 There is no Environmental Claim (as defime8ection 6.1) pending or, to the best of GSlewiedge, threatened against or involving
the Assets.

2.13.3 To the best of GSI's knowledge, GSI hasundertaken or caused past or present actionsjtegj\circumstances, conditions, event
incidents, including, without limitation, the reksg threatened release, emission, discharge ayséispf any Material of Environmental
Concern (as defined in Section 6.1), that couldhftre basis of any Environmental Claim against GA&sithe owner of the Assets.

2.13.4 Without in any way limiting the generalit/tbe foregoing and to the extent the Assets dertfd, (a) no polychlorinated biphenyls
are or have been used or stored at any propertgdwnleased by GSI or used by GSI, and (b) tdhést of GSI's knowledge, no friable
asbestos or friable asbestos-containing materaisent at any property owned or leased by GSI.

2.14 Customers. Exhibit 2.14 hereto contains a miadlietrue and complete list of all customers dbiGluring the period from January 1, 1¢
through August 1, 1997 for goods or services. Nafrtbe present listed customers has notified GSlnofhtention to cease purchasing goods
or services from GSI.

2.15 Suppliers. Exhibit 2.15 hereto contains a netg true and complete list of all suppliers franthrough whom GSI has purchased
products or services during the period from Janday996 through August 1, 1997 for use in conoactvith operation of GSI. None of the
present listed suppliers has notified GSI of aaritibn materially to change its business relatignslith GSI.

2.16 Absence of Certain Payments. Neither GSI ngrdirector, officer, agent, employee or other parassociated with or acting on behalf
of any of them has used any funds of GSI for unldwbntributions, gifts, entertainment or otherawul expenses relating to political
activity, or made any direct or indirect unlawfayments to government officials or employees framporate funds, or established or
maintained any unlawful or unrecorded funds, otated any provisions of the Foreign Corrupt Prastiéct of 1977 or any rules or
regulations promulgated thereunder.

2.17 Intellectual Property. GSI owns, or is licethee otherwise has the full right to use all Irgetuial Property of material importance to the
conduct of the business of GSI as presently coedué&ixhibit 1.1.6 lists all Intellectual Properand all applications therefor, that are owned
by GSI and that relate to the business of GSI. lEkRi17 lists all material license agreements pains to which GSl is licensed under any
Intellectual Property (the "Licensed Intellectuabgerty”). (a) All Intellectual Property, and eaapplication therefor, that is identified on
Exhibit 1.1.6 as owned by GSl is, together with goedwill of the business associated with any masksed by GSI free and clear of any
license, sublicense, agreement, judgment, ordergdestipulation or material adverse lien or enotance;

(b) to the extent the Assets are affected, thenlessiand operations of GSI do not infringe upoviaate any Intellectual Property owned by
any third party; (c) GSI has not received, withie past four years, notice of any claim that GSlih&inged or violated any Intellectual
Property of any third party, or that any Intelledt®roperty identified on Exhibit 1.1.6 as owned®$l is invalid or violates or infringes upon
the rights of any third party; and (d) GSI has st or otherwise communicated to another perspmatice, charge, claim or other assertion
of, nor does GSI have any knowledge of, any presapending or threatened infringement or violatignany third party of any Intellectual
Property or Licensed Intellectual Property of G8lany acts of unfair competition by any third gamo the extent the Assets are affected,
GSI maintains reasonable security measures to preNgclosure or transfer to unauthorized persdranyp trade secrets and confidential
information that are proprietary and material te business of GSI.

2.18 Insurance Contracts. Exhibit 2.18 lists afitcacts of insurance and indemnity (not shown i @ther schedule referred to in this
Agreement) in force at the date hereof with respethie Assets. GSI shall keep all such insurandali force and effect for not less than one
year after the Closing to provide for any claimsehhmay be made with respect to items includedéAssets for which GSl is or may
responsible.

2.19 Interests of Officers. None of the officerdaectors of GSI has any interest in any propedg) or personal, tangible or intangible,
including Intellectual Property used in or pertamio the business of GSI, except for the nornggits of a shareholder, and except for rights
under existing employee benefit plans.

2.20 No Misrepresentations. No representation aramtéy by GSI in this Agreement, nor any statemeettificate or schedule furnished or to
be furnished by or on behalf of GSI pursuant te #greement nor any document or certificate dedidan CACI pursuant to this Agreement,
when taken together with the foregoing, containshail contain any untrue statement of material daomits or shall omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements not miskgadin

ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF CACI AND CASUB
CACI and CASub represent and warrant to GSI| asviall

3.1 Corporate Status of CACI and CASub. CACI andSGB are corporations duly organized, validly ergtind in good standing under the
laws of Delaware. CACI and CASub are duly qualifiedio business as foreign corporations and agedd standing in all jurisdictions in
which the character of the properties owned, leasexperated by each or the nature of the businassacted by each makes such
qualification necessary, except where failure tedegualified would not have a materially adverf§ect on the business, operations, assets,
financial condition, results of operations, proferior prospects of CACI and its Subsidiaries abergid as a wholi



3.2 Authority for Agreement. CACI and CASub have thll corporate power to own, lease and operagi giroperties and to conduct their
businesses as currently owned, leased, operatecbanidcted and to execute, deliver, and performAlgreement and the other transactions
contemplated herein and to carry out their oblayaihereunder. The execution, delivery and perfoomaf this Agreement and the other
transactions contemplated hereby have been dulyaidly authorized by CACI's Board of Directorsdamo other corporate proceedings on
the part of CACI or CASub including, without limitan, stockholder approval, are necessary to aizthéhe execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement and the other traimsaccontemplated hereby. This Agreement anddlaed documents have been duly
executed and delivered by CACI and are legal, vatid binding obligations of CACI enforceable aga@aCl in accordance with their
respective terms except as enforceability mayrhadd by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganizatiorotiver laws affecting generally the
enforcement of creditors' rights and except toetktent that courts may award money damages rdtaardpecific performance of contractual
provisions.

3.3 No Default or Violation. The execution, deliyend performance of this Agreement and the otlasistictions contemplated hereby do
and will not (a) conflict with or result in a vidlan of any provision of the Certificate of Incorption or By-Laws or other organizational
documents of CACI or CASub, or (b) with or withdhe giving of notice or the lapse of time, or batbnflict with, or result in any violation
or breach of or constitute a default under, or iregilne consent of any other party to, or resuliriy right to accelerate or the creation of any
lien, charge or encumbrance pursuant to, or ri§términation under, any provision of any note, tgage, indenture, lease, agreement or
other instrument, permit, concession, grant, fresgHicense, judgment, order, decree, statute,daginance, rule or regulation to which
CACI or CASub is a party or by which either of themany of their assets or properties may be bauhich is applicable to either of them
or any of their assets or their properties. No atiation, consent, approval, license, order, empeof, or declaration of, or filing with or
notice to, any governmental body or authority oy ather person or entity is necessary for the etk@cw@and delivery of this Agreement by
CACI and CASub or the consummation by CACI and CA8Btithe other transactions contemplated herelty enable CACI and CASub to
continue to conduct their business after the Ctpgira manner consistent in all material respedts that in which they are currently
conducted.

3.4 Annual Reports. CACI has previously furnishedS| true and complete copies of its Annual Repfant each of the three fiscal years
ending June 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996 and its QiaReport for the nine months ended March 31, 1@8& "CACI Reports”). Each of the
balance sheets included in the CACI Reports (irinlpdny related notes and schedules) fairly prastaet consolidated financial position of
CACI as of its date and the other financial stateiméncluded in the CACI Reports (including anyatetl notes and schedules) fairly present
the consolidated results of operations or otharmftion included therein of CACI for the periodsas of the dates therein set forth, in each
case in accordance with generally accepted acamuptinciples consistently applied during the pasimvolved.

3.5 Absence of Material Adverse Changes and Unmlied Liabilities. Except as set forth on Exhibi 8r as disclosed in the CACI Reports,
since March 31, 1997 there has not occurred oemrighether or not in the ordinary course of bussnéa) any material adverse change in the
business, operations, assets, financial conditesults of operations, properties or prospectsATCand CASub considered as a whole, o
any event, condition or state of facts of any cti@mathat might materially and adversely affecttiisiness, operations, assets, financial
condition, results of operations, properties orspaxts of CACI and CASub considered as a wholeefgbas set forth on Exhibit 3.5 or as
disclosed in the CACI Reports, CACI and CASub, a@r®d as a whole, have no material liabilitie®lligations, fixed, accrued, contingent
or otherwise, that are not fully reflected or ped for on, or disclosed in the notes to, the clidsted balance sheet as at March 31, 1997
included in the CACI Reports or elsewhere in thedQTReports, except

(a) liabilities and obligations incurred in or agesult of the ordinary course of business sinceckl&1, 1997, none of which individually or
the aggregate has been or is materially adverf®tbusiness, operations, assets, financial comglitesults of operations, properties or
prospects of CACI and CASub considered as a wiiio}diabilities and obligations permitted by or pided for or contemplated by this
Agreement and (c) liabilities and obligations diseld on the Exhibits delivered hereunder.

3.6 No Misrepresentations. No representation oramsy by CACI or CASub in this Agreement, nor atgtement, certificate or schedule
furnished or to be furnished by or on behalf of GACCASub pursuant to this Agreement nor any doeninor certificate delivered to GSI
pursuant to this Agreement, when taken togethdr thi¢ foregoing, contains or shall contain any umstatement of material fact or omits or
shall omit to state a material fact necessary thenthe statements not misleading.

3.7 Employment Offers. Prior to the Closing, CA@HaCASub have made offers of employment to sulisijnall of the employees of GSI.
ARTICLE 4
COVENANTS
It is further agreed as follows:

4.1 Further Assurances. Subject to terms and dondiherein provided and to the fiduciary duty a€le party's Board of Directors and
officers, each of the parties agrees to use itsdffsts to take, or cause to be taken, all actiod to do, or cause to be done, all things
necessary, proper or advisable under applicabls & regulations to consummate and make effetttevdgreement and the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. le éasny time any further action, including theaiting of waivers and consents under
material contracts and leases, is necessary aablésto carry out the purposes of this Agreemtet proper officers and directors of each
party to this Agreement are hereby directed andaristed to use their efforts to effectuate all ieeghaction. GSI agrees to use its best efforts
to effect assignments of all the Assigned Contrautd further agrees to provide all documentatieressary to effect such assignments,
including, without limitation, all instruments, ¢iications, requests, legal opinions, auditedfiicial statements, and other docume



required by Part 42 of the Federal Acquisition Rations to effect an assignment of any contradhwie Government.
4.2 Assignment of Assigned Contracts.

4.2.1 With respect to any Assigned Contract or@aim, right or benefit arising thereunder or réisgl therefrom GSI, CACI and CASub
shall use their respective best efforts to obtianwritten consent of the other parties to suchighesl Contract for the assignment or novation
thereof to CASub or written confirmation from symdrties reasonably satisfactory in form and sultgtam CACI and GSI that such consent
is not required. As soon as practicable following tlate hereof, with respect to each Assigned &cintio which the United States governn
or an agency thereof is a party, GSI shall eitheaio written confirmation reasonably satisfactoryorm and substance to CACI and GSI
that novation of such Assigned Contract is not iregiuor submit to the relevant responsible coningobfficer a written request that the
United States government or the relevant agenar émb a government contract novation with GShwispect to such Assigned Contract.
GSI shall take in this regard all actions requioedustomary under the Federal Acquisition Regoiteti Except as provided in the
immediately preceding sentence, in no event sh@ll GACI or CASub or any of their respective Atiiles be obligated to pay any money to
the United States government, any agency thereafipiother person or entity or to offer or gratestfinancial or other accommaodations in
connection with obtaining any novation, assignmeatsent or waiver.

4.2.2 Until such novation, assignment, consentaiver is obtained with respect to any Assigned @anto which the United States
government or an agency thereof is a party, GSICIC#d CASub will cooperate in an arrangement nealsly satisfactory to GSI and CACI
under which CASub will obtain, to the extent preable, the claims, rights and benefits and asstmedrresponding obligations thereunder
in accordance with this Agreement, including, withbmitation, subcontracting, sub-licensing or dahsing to the benefit of CASub, with
CASub assuming GSl's obligations, any and all dainghts and benefits of GSI against a third ptréereto.

4.2.3 The ADTN Contract

4.2.3.1 The parties understand and agree that,théeClosing Date, negotiations with the Governnierconnection with the ADTN
Contract) to finalize the pricing of network managmt services for the period from July 1, 1997 tigtothe remainder of the ADTN Contr
(the "Go Forward Period") shall be the respongipbdif CACI and CASub and that CACI and/or CASublkbaar the cost of conducting such
negotiations. CACI and CASub shall keep GSI infailras to the progress of those negotiations andl alradult with GSI concerning any
agreement or other final action resulting from thoegotiations. GSI shall use its best effortssish CACI and CASub with such
negotiations from time to time upon the requestALC] and/or CASub with such negotiations from titodime upon the request of CACI
and/or CASub, provided that GSI shall not be oliideo pay any money to any person or entity égn¢ar any material out-of-pocket
expenses in connection with such assistancefuttiser agreed that GSI shall make available anysamployees and/or records that may be
reasonably required by CACI or CASub in connectidth this matter. In order to assist CACI or CASwith such responsibility, GSI agrees
to authorize its outside counsel involved in thistter to represent CACI and/or CASub for purposésted to the ADTN Contract. The
parties hereby waive any claim of conflict of irgstin connection with such representation andhéuragree to execute a final joint defense
agreement or other instrument which will permitlsaounsel to share any required information withGTAnd/or CASub without waiving
any claim of attorney-client or attorney work plage.

4.2.3.2 GSI further agrees that if CACI and/or CASiled (or, if the novation of the ADTN Contradtal not have occurred prior to March
31, 1998, requests GSI in writing to file) a clasmlawsuit against the Government relating to theipg of network management services
during the Go Forward Period under the ADTN Coriteaca result of a breakdown of the ongoing netotia (the "Claim/Lawsuit"), then
GSil shall reimburse CACI and/or CASub for the ofipocket costs (including, without limitation, att@ys' fees) incurred by CACI and/or
CASub in connection with the Claim/Lawsuit; provildowever, that (a) GSI shall not be responsitte@ahy such reimbursement if the
Government has agreed to pay (or is paying) at 280,000 per month for network management sesudceing the Go Forward Period and
(b) GSI's total reimbursement obligation under Béstion 4.2.3 shall not exceed $100,000.

4.2.3.3 In the event of any conflict between thevgions of this Section 4.2.3 and the provisiohSection 4.2.1 or Section 4.2.2, then the
provisions of this Section 4.2.3 shall control.

4.3 Customers. During the twelve-month period comeiteg on the Closing, GSI shall inform CACI pronyptif all inquiries from potential
customers concerning the possible purchase of axdupt or service provided by GSI. In this connattiGSI shall provide CACI with the
name and address of each potential customer arsiistance of each inquiry. GSI shall refer ea¢brg@l customer who shall make any
inquiry to CACI. During the period, GSI shall use Ibest efforts to introduce CACI to GSl's custagfer the products and services of GSI
and to cooperate with and assist CACI in estaligshi relationship with each customer.

4.4 Returns of Defective Goods. If any goods sgi@®i$! prior to the Closing are returned to CACIGASub by the customer, or proposed to
be returned, during the twelve-month period atter €losing because of defects in materials or warighip or other noncompliance with
specifications, CACI shall give notice to GSI oétteturn or proposed return and shall discuss @&hthe nature of the defect or
noncompliance and the disposition of any goodsahato returned or are to be so returned. Folipwie discussion and any investigation
CACI shall deem appropriate, CACI may, at its optiprovide a refund or allowance to the customemiramount reasonably consistent with
CACI's or GSl's prior practice. If CACI providesefund or allowance to a customer with respectioraturned merchandise, CACI may
cause the merchandise to be returned to GSI os @&$ignee and CACI shall cooperate with GSI's&sfto resell or dispose thereof. If the
aggregate amount so refunded and allowed by CAGhfamerchandise exceeds $5,000, then GSI slialboese CACI for the excess, less
the reasonable residual value, if any, of any efr#turned goods retained by CACI and not delivéoe@dSl.



4.5 Excluded Assets. Within thirty days after tHesihg, GSI, at its own expense and in complianitk all applicable laws, shall remove all
Excluded Assets from any premises to be transféaed occupied by CASub.

4.6 Defense of Claims and Litigation. At all tinfesm and after the Closing, GSI, CACI and CASublistensult, confer and cooperate in
good faith on a reasonable basis with the othdy genrcluding, without limitation, the making avalille of withesses and cooperation in
discovery proceedings) in the conduct or defensmngfclaim, litigation or proceeding against eitharty or its Affiliates by any third party
which relates to any of the Assets or Assumed liteds, or any matter which, directly or indirectigrises therefrom, whether known at the
Closing or arising thereafter. To the extent ttdeimnification provisions of this Agreement or ofyarther document delivered in connection
with the transactions contemplated hereby appgngosuch conduct or defense, they shall contrtb dse payment of costs and expen ses.

4.7 Retention of Books and Records. For a pericgkwén years after the Closing, each party shalinrés books and records relating to the
Assets and the Assumed Liabilities. If any partgides to obtain any such books and records it neagodby notifying the other party, in
writing, at any time prior to the end of such seyear period. The notice must specify the documesish the requesting party wishes to
obtain. The parties shall then promptly arrangettierdelivery of copies of such documents. All offpocket costs associated with the
delivery of the requested documents shall be pgithé requesting party.

4.8 Employees.

4.8.1 CACI and CASub shall offer to hire the emgley of GSI agreed upon by GSI, CACI and CASub memegt effective as of the
Closing on terms and conditions that are substgntiamparable to the terms and conditions of emiplent of such employees with GSI
immediately prior to the Closing. GSI shall notiriere with CACI or CASub in their efforts to emplparticular employees of GSI.

4.8.2 At or before the Closing GSI shall pay alingeensation accrued and payable as of the Closialy ¢ its present and former employees
and independent contractors who work or worked $t, @cluding, without limitation, straight time drovertime pay, fringe benefits,
severance pay, disability payments and paymentsiéatical, dental, life insurance, workmen's compgas and benefits under any Benefit
Plan that are payable at Closing, and shall pay tvihe appropriate governmental agencies or @ppropriate persons or entities all
withheld taxes, social security and other similayments accrued and payable as of the Closingredbect to such present and former
employees and independent contractors through lthen@, except for amounts and taxes included énAbsumed Liabilities. Notwithstandi
ng the foregoing, any employee of GSI who has @&ttuacation leave for vacation not yet taken ("\fiacelLeave") as of the Closing Date
may elect either to receive a payment equal t@ppticable wages (less applicable withholding &atdral, state and local income and
employment taxes) for such Vacation Leave, as aated by GSI, or to retain credit for such Vacatigave for purposes of his or her
employment with CACI or CASub. In the event the éogpe elects to receive payment for his Vacatioaveg such payment shall be mad:
GSI no later than the Closing Date. In the eveatdimployee elects to retain credit for such Vacdtieave, then CACI and CASub agree to
grant credit for such Vacation Leave under its tiaogpolicy, without regard to any limit on vacatiaccruals that may be set forth in such

policy.

4.8.3 After the Closing, GSI shall pay all amouhie from GSI to all of its present and former empks and independent contractors who
work or worked in GSI for (a) medical, dental, lifesurance and other welfare benefits due undeBamgfit Plan for claims incurred before
the Closing and

(b) for workmen's compensation claims incurred keefar after the Closing for injuries that occurpetr to the Closing. Except as otherwise
agreed between GSI and the relevant employee apiebeisled in Section 4.8.2, GSI shall pay or shalise to be paid any benefits that
become payable under any Benefit Plan on or dfteosing to any employee of GSI who accepts tfeg of employment extended by
CACI and CASub ("Transferred Employee") in accoawith the terms of any such Benefit Plan. CAGI @A Sub agree to cooperate, in a
complete, timely and diligent manner to provide ®6its ERISA Affiliates with such service and casglata, including prompt notification
of the termination of employment of any Transfergadployee, as may be required by GSI or any of tf@rthe purposes of effecting
distribution of benefits to which any Transferremfiloyee may be entitled under any such Benefit.Plan

4.8.4 Effective at the Closing, CACI and CASub sbéfer coverage under a comprehensive group heddih ("Group Health Plan") to all
Transferred Employees, taking into account forikligy purposes under such plan the service aatieany such individual as an employee
of GSI or its ERISA Affiliates. CACI and CASub shualaive all exclusions and limitations for preexigt conditions under such Group He:
Plan for all Transferred Employees and their depatelwho were covered under a group health pl&Sifor its ERISA Affiliates prior to
Closing. For purposes of participation in such Q@rélealth Plan, each Transferred Employee shallralseive credit for all payments made
toward their annual deductible under the groupthgabn of GSI or its ERISA Affiliates in which sadransferred Employee was a
participant immediately prior to the Closing.

4.8.5 Effective at the Closing, Transferred Empésywill immediately be eligible to participate metCACI $MART [401K] Plan. CACI and
CASub will accept the direct rollover of the Tramséd Employee's account balance in the InfonetMat Asset Plan ("GSI Plan") including
any outstanding loan balances. At the requestlofiasferred Employee, the Trustees of the GSI Rillrassign the Transferred Employee's
loan note to Franklin Templeton Trust Co., Trusteethe CACI SMART [401K] Plan.

4.8.6 For purposes of calculating service creditefigibility and vesting under the Employee BéhEfans and Benefit Arrangements
maintained by CACI or CASub (or the ERISA Affilistef either of them) for the benefit of the Tramsfd Employees, CACI or CASub (or
the ERISA Affiliates of either of them), as appliba, shall grant to any Transferred Employee criediall service earned as an employee of
GSl.



4.9 Bulk Transfer Compliance. GSI covenants anéegto pay and discharge promptly and when dueinaatrespects to defend CACI and
CASub against, all claims which are asserted ag@A€1 or CASub by reason of noncompliance with ik transfer provisions of the
Uniform Commercial Code or similar statutory préeis applicable to this Agreement and the transastcontemplated hereunder at the
Closing. To the extent the indemnification provismf this Agreement or of any other document éeéd in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby apply to any such conduct f@nde, they shall control as to the payment ofscastl expenses.

4.10 Indemnities.

4.10.1 Indemnification of CACI. Subject to the ltations set forth in this Agreement, GSI shall imaéfy and hold harmless CACI and

CASub and their respective successors by mergather operation of law (the "Successors"), directord officers from and against all

losses, liabilities, claims, damages, costs or eg@e (including, without limitation, reasonable exges of investigation and reasonable
attorneys' fees and disbursements) suffered, iedwr paid:

4.10.1.1 that would not have been suffered, inclorepaid if all the representations, warrantiesiemants and agreements of GSI in this
Agreement or any document delivered by GSI or Iaf@ursuant to this Agreement (including withoutitation the Subcontracts and the
letter agreement relating to the Globalstar cottmacin any other instrument or document descrilbeSection 5.2 hereof had been (with

respect to representations and warranties) trudaddeen (with respect to covenants and agreepfahysperformed and fulfilled;

4.10.1.2 under the Worker Adjustment and RetrailNitjfication Act of 1988 ("WARN?") or similar lawsathe result of any "plant closing"
"mass layoff," within the meaning of WARN, that ocs at or prior to Closing; 4.10.1.3 as a resulimf "Action"” (as hereinafter defined)

arising out of or relating to the conduct of thesiness of GSI before or after the Closing or aalility or obligation, or alleged liability, of

GSlI

not specifically assumed by CACI under this Agreetnand

4.10.1.4 as a result of any Action which arisesadudr relates to the failure of GSI to pay, prompind when due, any tax, fee or other chi
which shall become due or shall have accrued oownt@f the use, acquisition or ownership of GSay of the Assets or any tax, fee or
other charge GSl is obligated to pay, or to reireBUCACI or CASub for, hereunder on account of alg ef the Assets or the transactions
contemplated hereby.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryGBI shall be required to indemnify CACI, CASubaory of their Subsidiaries or any
their respective directors, officers or Successotis respect to the same item of damage and amthensatisfaction of such indemnity to one
of them shall discharge GSl's obligations to theepto the extent of the amount paid.

4.10.2 Indemnification of GSI. Subject to the liatibns set forth in this Agreement, CACI and CAShhll indemnify and hold harmless GSI
and its directors, officers and Successors fromamyadnst all losses, liabilities, claims, damagests or expenses (including, without
limitation, reasonable expenses of investigatiah i@@asonable attorney's fees and disbursementsfesdifincurred or paid:

4.10.2.1 that would not have been suffered, inclorepaid if all the representations, warrantiesiemants and agreements of CACI and
CASub in this Agreement or in any other instrum@ndocument furnished to GSI pursuant to Secti@rh&reof had been (with respect to
representations and warranties) true and had édnréspect to covenants and agreements) fulljopaed and fulfilled; or

4.10.2.2 as a result of any Action arising out ofedating to the conduct of business involving saon all of the Assets or the Assumed
Liabilities as of or after the Closing or to anyldee of CACI or CASub to perform any liability spiéically assumed by it pursuant to this
Agreement or

any document delivered by CACI or CASub pursuarthi® Agreement (including without limitation thell&ontracts and the letter agreen
relating to the Globalstar contract).

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryGCACI or CASub shall be required to indemnify G$lay of its directors, officers
Successors with

respect to the same item of damage and amount paychent or satisfaction of

such indemnity to one of them shall discharge tiigations of CACI and CASub to the other to théeak of the amount paid.

4.10.3 Third Party Claims. The obligations andiliies of a party from which indemnification is gght (an "Indemnifying Party") by a
person or entity seeking indemnification (an "Inaéired Party") under this Section 4.10 with respectlaims resulting from the assertion of
liability by third parties shall be subject to tfedlowing conditions:

4.10.3.1 The Indemnified Party shall give writtastice to the Indemnifying Party of the nature of #ssertion of liability by a third party and
the amount thereof promptly after the Indemnifiedti? learns of such assertion. The foregoing nbisténding, failure of an Indemnified
Party to comply with its obligations under this @t 4.10.3 shall affect its right to indemnity grnb the extent the Indemnifying Party
demonstrates actual damage caused by such failure.

4.10.3.2 If any claim, action, suit or proceediag [Action") is brought by a third party againstlademnified Party, the Action shall be
defended by the Indemnifying Party and such defehad include all appeals or reviews which courigethe Indemnifying Party shall deem
appropriate. Until the Indemnifying Party shall baassumed the defense of any such Action, or ifttlemnified Party shall have reasonably
concluded that there are likely to be defensedahaito the Indemnified Party that are differewini or in addition to those available to



Indemnifying Party (in which case the IndemnifyiAgrty shall not be entitled to assume the defefisaah Action), all legal or other
expenses reasonably incurred by the Indemnifiety Baall be borne by the Indemnifying Party andidharepaid to the Indemnifying Party
by the Indemnified Party if it is finally determici¢hat the Indemnifying Party was not liable ompassible for the claim underlying the
Action.

4.10.3.3 In any Action initiated by a third partydedefended by the Indemnifying Party, (a) the mddied Party shall have the right to be
represented by advisory counsel and accountarits,@tn expense, (b) the Indemnifying Party skaép the Indemnified Party fully
informed as to the status of such Action at ajssathereof, whether or not the Indemnified Patyepresented by its own counsel, (c) the
Indemnified Party shall make available to the Indéying Party, and its attorneys and accountantscks and records of the Indemnified
Party relating to such Action, and (d) the parsiball render to each other such assistance (imgueiithout limitation, as contemplated by
Section 4.6) as may be reasonably required foptbper and adequate defense of such Action.

4.10.3.4 In any Action initiated by a third partydedefended by the Indemnifying Party, the Indeging Party shall not make any settlement
of any claim without the written consent of theénthified Party, which consent shall not be unreablynwithheld or delayed. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, it shalbt be deemed unreasonable to withhold consensétti@ment involving injunctive or other
equitable relief against the Indemnified Partytserassets, employees or business.

4.10.4 Claims. If a claim is to be made by a patysuant to Section 4.10.1, 4.10.2 or 4.10.3 hefeuagainst the other party, the claiming
party shall give written notice (a "Claim Noticet)the other party as soon as practicable aftecltiming party becomes aware of any fact,
condition or event which may give rise to a claonhich indemnification may be sought under thest®n 4.10.

4.10.5 Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding atfying herein to the contrary, GSI shall not belkalo CACI or CASub, and CACI and
CASub shall not be liable to GSI, in connectionhatiis Agreement or the transactions contemplayetthis Agreement for any
indemnification or other form of obligation (i) wds (A) the claim is ripe, (B) the Claim Noticeidefed in connection with such claim
describes an actual occurrence giving rise to slaim and (C) the Claim Notice is received by thaety from which indemnification is souc
on or before June 30, 2000 and (ii) unless and tngtiaggregate amount of liability for any reasaweeds $25,000 (provided that thereafter
the Indemnifying Party shall make indemnificatitieteunder for the aggregate amount of such ligpilicluding, without limitation, such
$25,000). The total amount of GSl's obligationrtdemnify or otherwise pay CACI, CASub or any otherson or entity for any reason in
connection with this Agreement or the transacticorgtemplated by this Agreement shall not exceedggregate, the Purchase Pr



Article 5
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

5.1 Conditions Precedent to the Obligations of Hatty. The obligations of GSI, CACI and CASub tiget the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement shall be subject to the fulfillmhat or prior to the Closing of the following catioins:

5.1.1 No injunction or restraining or other ordgsued by a court of competent jurisdiction thahpits or materially restricts the
consummation of any transaction contemplated ks/Algireement or any other material transaction coptated by this Agreement shall be
effect, and no action or proceeding shall have lmeammenced or threatened in writing seeking anyniction or restraining or other order t
seeks to prohibit, restrain, invalidate or set@asidnsummation of the Acquisition.

5.1.2 There shall not have been any action takehpa statute, rule or regulation shall have beat®d, by any state or federal government
agency that would prohibit or materially restrioe tAcquisition.

5.1.3 All filings with and notifications to, andl @pprovals and authorizations of, third partieglfiding, without limitation, governmental
entities and authorities) required for the consutionaof the Acquisition shall have been made ormotetd and all such approvals and
authorizations obtained shall be effective andlstalhave been suspended, revoked or stayed mnasftany governmental entity or
authority.

5.1.4 All applicable waiting periods (and any estiens thereof) under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitlnsprovements Act of 1976, as
amended, shall have expired or otherwise been tetead.

5.2 Conditions to Obligations of CACI and CASulHifect the Acquisition. The obligation of CACI a@ASub to effect the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall be subjettiedulfillment at or prior to the Closing of thellowing additional conditions:

5.2.1 CACI, CASub, and Infonet Services Corporafld8C") shall have entered into contractual aremgnts satisfactory to CACI for the
provision by ISC to CASub of all services requinegupport of the contractual commitments of GSuased by CASub pursuant to this
Agreement and for indemnification by ISC with regpt® all the matters as to which GSl is to proviteemnification pursuant to Section
4.10;

5.2.2 CACI, CASub and ISC shall have entered intttactual arrangements satisfactory to CACI witspect to the employment of the
senior executives of GSI identified in Exhibit 22.

5.2.3 GSI shall have delivered to CASub all appeiprdeeds and instruments of transfer, conveyaate and assignment in respect of the
Assets, consisting of bills of sale, assignmerdafiomation of notices sent to third parties hoglamy such Assets, and such other good and
sufficient instruments of conveyance and transfal{ding, without limitation, any consents therétothird parties necessary to make the
same valid and effective), in such form and cortgirsuch terms and provisions as CACI may reasg@maljuest, including, without
limitation, the documents listed in

Section 1.7.2.1.1;

5.2.4 CACI and CASub shall have received an opinitimfonet's general counsel, on behalf of Infaaed GSI in form and substance
satisfactory to counsel to CACI, dated the datthefClosing, to the effect set forth in Exhibit 4,2

5.2.5 Since March 31, 1997, there shall not haemn laey material adverse change of any nature ibubmess, operations, assets, financial
condition, results of operations, properties orspexts of GSI that affects the Assets.

5.2.6 CACI shall not have any knowledge or reasdpefieve or suspect that GSI will be unable tagasthe Assigned Contracts or that any
other party, including, without limitation, the Gawment, will not approve or consent to the assigmrof any of the Assigned Contracts or
will otherwise prohibit or materially restrict tlssignment of any of the Assigned Contracts; and

5.2.7 CACI and CASub shall have received from AQisdther documents consistent with the purposebisfAgreement, in form and
substance satisfactory to CACI and its counseGAGI shall have reasonably requested (other thditiadal opinions of counsel).

5.3 Conditions to Obligations of GSI to Effect thequisition. The obligation of GSI to effect the dudsition shall be subject to the fulfillme
at or prior to the Closing of the following additial conditions:

5.3.1 GSI shall have received an opinion of CAGé&gseral counsel in form and substance satisfatbocpunsel to GSI, dated the date of the
Closing, to the effect set forth in Exhibit 5.3ahid

5.3.2 GSI shall have received from CACI and CASlikwech other documents consistent with the purp@$¢his Agreement, in form and
substance satisfactory to GSI and its counsel,Siss@all have reasonably requested (other thariaddl opinions of counsel



ARTICLE 6

DEFINITIONS AND MISCELLANEOUS
6.1 Definitions of Certain Terms. As used herdie, following terms shall have the following mearsing
1997 Balance Sheet: as defined in Section 2.5 hereo
Action: any claim, action, suit or proceeding.
ADTN Contract: as defined in Section 1.8.2 hereof.
Affiliate: with respect to any entity, any persanemtity that controls, is controlled by, or is @mdommon control with such entity.
Assets: as defined in Section 1.1 hereof.
Asset Documents: as defined in Section 1.1.4 hereof
Assigned Contracts: as defined in Section 1.1.@dfer
Assumed Liabilities: as defined in Section 1.3 bére

Benefit Arrangement: any material benefit arrangeintieat is not an Employee Benefit Plan, includingny employment or consulting
agreement, (ii) any arrangement providing for iasiwe coverage or workers' compensation benefi)satfiy incentive or deferred bonus
arrangement, (iv) any arrangement providing tertomaallowance, severance or similar benefits,

(v) any equity compensation plan, and (vi) any def compensation plan.

Benefit Plan: any Employee Benefit Plan or Bengfiangement that is sponsored or contributed t&BY or any of its ERISA Affiliates
covering GSl's employees or former employees.

CACI Reports: as defined in Section 3.4 hereof.

Closing: as defined in Section 1.7 hereof.

Code: as defined in Section 1.7.2.1.3 hereof.

Employee Benefit Plan: any employee benefit plardefined in Section 3(3) of ERISA.

Employee Pension Benefit Plan: any employee persoefit plan as defined in
Section 3(2) of ERISA that is subject to regulatiomder Title IV of ERISA, other than a Multiemplayelan.

Environmental Claim: any written notice by any goweental agency alleging potential liability (inding, without limitation, potential
liability for investigatory costs, cleanup costeygrnmental response costs, natural resources @sma@perty damages, personal injuries,
fines or penalties) arising out of, based on oulteg) from (a) the presence, or release into therenment, of any Material of Environmental
Concern at any location, whether or not owned byCCé any of its Subsidiaries or (b) circumstanfming the basis of any violation, or
alleged violation, of any Environmental

Law.

Environmental Contamination: (a) an occurrence oaogi or a condition existing relating to GSI attmfore the Closing if such occurrence
condition was in violation of any Environmental LawEnvironmental Permit existing at or before @lesing and if CACI or CASub is
specifically required to take remedial action wiglspect thereto by a governmental agency

or a negotiated agreement, decree or clean-upaithra governmental agency,

regardless of when such occurrence or conditialisisovered or when such remedial action is requiftgdany use, disposal or discharge of
Materials of Environmental Concern by GSI before @losing resulting in liability to a

third party, regardless of when such use, dispmsdischarge is discovered or (c) an occurrencaroiog or condition existing which is
caused by GSI at

or before the Closing if CACI or CASub investigatesakes remedial action with respect theretegsired by applicable Environmental
Laws.

Environmental Laws: mean all Federal, state andlli@evs, rules and regulations relating to pollntar protection of the environment, or
occupational or human health and safety, includivithout limitation, laws, rules and regulationsateng to handling, processing, storage,
recycling, emission, discharge, disposal, treatntesnhisportation, release or threatened releaaayoMaterial of Environmental Concern



other waste or material into ambient air, surfaegew ground water or land, including, without liation, the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (42 U.S@D1 et seq.), the Hazardous Material Transportatct (49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.), the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act (38 U.S.C. 1285eq.), the Resource Conservation and Recoweridf U.S.C. 6901 et seq.), the Cl
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.), the Toxic SubstnControl Act (15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.), the Oatinpal Safety

and Health Act (29 U.S.C. 651 et seq.), the Emargé&tanning and Community Right to Know Act (42 WCS11001 et seq.), the Federal
Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (7 U.SL85 et seq.), and the Food, Drug and Cosmeti¢¥ct).S.C. 2000 et seq.), in each case
as these laws have been amended or supplemented.

Environmental Permit: all certificates, consentxnpits, licenses, authorizations and approvalsiredqunder or relating to any Environmel
Law.

ERISA: the Employee Retirement Income Security #ct974, as amended.

ERISA Affiliate: any person that, together with G&l of the relevant measuring date under ERISA,on&srequired to be treated as single
employer under Section 414 of the Code.

Government: the federal government of the UnitedeStof America.
GSI Financial Statements: as defined in Sectiorh2réof.

GSI Plans: as defined in Section 4.8.5 hereof.

Indemnified Party: as defined in Section 4.10.3%bér

Indemnifying Party: as defined in Section 4.10.8cbé

Intellectual Property: as defined in Section 1He6eof.

Inventory: as defined in Section 1.1.1 hereof.

ISC: as defined in Section 5.2.1 hereof.

Licensed Intellectual Property: as defined in Secf.17 hereof.

Materials of Environmental Concern: those substaimc&onstituents which are
regulated by, or form the basis of liability undany Environmental Law.

Multiemployer Plan: a multiemployer plan, as define Section 3(37) and 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.
Orders: as defined in Section 1.1.8 hereof.

PBGC: the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.

Prepaid Expenses: as defined in Section 1.1.5 hereo

Purchase Price: as defined in Section 1.5 hereof.

SEC: the Securities and Exchange Commission, ogaagrnmental agency succeeding to its functions.

Subsidiary: any corporation, association, or othesiness entity a majority
(by number of votes) of the shares of capital s{@clother voting interests) of which is owned b8IGCACI or their respective Subsidiaries.

Successors: as defined in Section 4.10.1 hereof.

Tangible Assets: as defined in Section 1.1.2 hereof

6.2 Brokerage. Each party shall be solely respéaméils payment of any fee or charge of any brokader, financial advisor or intermediary
engaged, employed, or consulted by that party mmeotion with negotiations or discussions inciderthe execution of this Agreement or
of the transactions contemplated hereby.

6.3 Survival of Representations and Warrantieswibstanding any investigation conducted beforafter the Closing, and notwithstanding
any knowledge or notice of any fact or circumstawbéh either CACI or GSI may have as the resubliath investigation or otherwis



CACI, CASub and GSI shall each be entitled to tglpn the representations, warranties and covepétiie other in this Agreement. Each
the representations, warranties and covenantsinedtin this Agreement, made in any document dediddnereunder or otherwise made in
connection with the Closing hereunder shall surtineeClosing and shall expire on June 30, 2000.

6.4 Expenses. Each party shall pay its own expeirsgading the fees of attorneys, accountantsestment bankers, valuation experts and
others, in connection with the transactions contated hereby, whether or not they are completeckgixthat in the event of a conflict
between this provision and the indemnification [smns of this Agreement, the indemnification psens shall control.

6.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be goverdmgdnd construed in accordance with the laws @Gbmmonwealth of Virginia.

6.6 Notice. All notices and other communicationeebb@der shall be in writing and shall be deemeémi¥ delivered by hand sent via a
reputable nationwide courier service or maileddyyistered or certified mail (return receipt reqad}to the parties at the following addresses
(or at such other address for a party as shalpbeified by like notice) and shall be deemed gieerhe date on which so hand-delivered or
on the third business day following the date onclvtgo mailed or sent:

To CACI and CASub:

CACI International Inc

1100 North Glebe Road

Arlington, VA 22201

Attention: Dr. J. P. London, Chairman

With copies to:

Jeffrey P. Elefante

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &agr€ACI International Inc
1100 North Glebe Road

Arlington, VA 22201

David W. Walker, Esg.
Foley, Hoag & Eliot LLP
One Post Office Square
Boston, MA 02109

To GSI:

Government Systems, Inc.

14200 Park Meadow Drive, Suite 200 Chantilly, VAL8Q-2219
Attention: President

With copies to:

Infonet Services Corporation

2100 East Grand Avenue

El Segundo, CA 90245

Attention: Dr. Ernest U. Gambaro, Senior Vice Riest, General Counsel and Secretary

Paul A. Galleberg, Esq.

Latham & Watkins

633 West Fifth Street, Suite 4000
Los Angeles, California 90071-2007

6.7 Entire Agreement, Assignability, etc. This Agmeent (a) constitutes the entire agreement, anefseges all other prior agreements and
understandings, both written and oral, betweerp#rées with respect to the subject matter her@dfis not intended to confer upon any
person other than the parties hereto any righteroedies hereunder, except as otherwise expresshidpd herein, and (c) shall not be
assignable by operation of law or otherwise. Thige®ment shall inure to the benefit of, and beibmdpon, the parties hereto and their
respective legal representatives and Successarshatl inure to the benefit of the IndemnifiedtiRarand their respective legal
representatives and Successors. All Exhibits meatlan this Agreement shall be attached to thiss@grent, and shall form an integral part
hereof. All capitalized terms defined in this Agment which are used in any Exhibit shall, unlegsdbntext otherwise requires, have the
same meaning therein as given herein.

6.8 Cumulative Rights and Remedies. GSI, CACI aA&@b each acknowledge that money damages aloneatiidequately compensate
the other party for breach of a party's obligationder this Agreement and, therefore, agree thiueirevent of the breach or threatened br
of any such obligation, in addition to all othemedies available, at law, in equity or otherwissgleparty shall be entitled to injunctive relief
compelling specific performance of, or other comptie with, the terms of this Agreement. All rigatsl remedies under this Agreement



cumulative and are in addition to and not exclusiany other rights and remedies provided hereynofeler any other document delivered
as part of a transaction contemplated hereby @raike by agreement or law, at equity or otherwigghout limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the parties expressly recognize thatifipgoerformance is not either party's sole remfmhany reason hereunder.

6.9 Severability. The invalidity or unenforcealyilaf any provisions of this Agreement shall notaffthe validity or enforceability of any
other provisions of this Agreement, each of whihlsremain in full force and effect.

6.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be execuatedé or more counterparts, all of which togettadlonstitute one and the same
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly exectlesl Agreement as of the date first above written.

CACI International Inc

[SEAL]
By: /sl
Chai rman and Chief Executive Officer
CACI, Inc.
[SEAL]
By: /sl
Chief Executive Officer
Government Systems, Inc.
[SEAL]

Aut hori zed si gner



Exhibit 99.2
CLOSING AGREEMENT

This Agreement (the "Closing Agreement") is entargd as of October 31, 1997 among CACI Internatldnc, a Delaware corporation
("CACI"), CACI, Inc., a Delaware corporation andvaolly-owned subsidiary of CACI ("CASub"), and Imfet Services Corporation, a
Delaware corporation ("Infonet™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Acquisition Agreement adredate herewith (the "Acquisition Agreement") agn@ACI, CASub and
Government Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporati@s(™), CACI is acquiring certain assets and assgmgrtain liabilities of GSI;

WHEREAS, GSl is a wholly owned subsidiary of Infarend

WHEREAS, it is a condition to the obligations of CAand CASub under the Acquisition Agreement thAGCG CASub and Infonet enter
into this Closing Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above ps&sj the mutual promises and covenants set foldlwpand other good and valual
consideration, the receipt of which is hereby askedged, CACI, CASub and Infonet agree as follows:

1. Performance of Obligations. Infonet shall ca@&# fully and faithfully to perform each and all SI' s covenants contained in the
Acquisition Agreement.

2. Non-Competition Agreement. For a period of thyears after the Closing Date, neither Infonetaroy of its Subsidiaries, without CACl's
prior written consent, shall participate, direatlyindirectly, as owner, stockholder, manager,rgartagent, consultant, representative or
otherwise in assisting any business, firm or capon in the provision of Competing Services. Forgoses of this Section 2, "Competing
Services" shall mean

()

contesting or seeking to overturn any of the Assih@ontracts and (ii) providing network configuoatinanagement, network optimization,
simulation and modeling or technology insertionlgsia services to any system integrator which impeting against CACI for a CACI
Desired Contract.

"CACI

Desired Contract" shall mean a contract or assigimifnem any branch or agency of the United Statesny state or local government in the
United States for which CACI shall have notifiedidmet in advance CACI intends to compete and faclWwIiCACI actually is in competition.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions dét8ection 2 shall not bind in any way any stockkolof Infonet and shall not limit Infon
in the sale of its standard

commercial products or services in any way.

3. Executive Retention. CACI has entered into agesds with certain persons who were employees éfif@i@ediately before the Closing,
providing for their employment after the closing®nCl, CASub, or one or more other subsidiarie€ALI, and further providing for certa
payments to the employees as additional compemnsfatioemaining in CACI's employ for specified pets after the Closing. In order to fu
CACI's obligation to make those additional paymehmfonet shall cause GSI to pay to CACI at Closimg sum of One Million One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($1,100,000) (the "Payment") bsewiansfer of immediately available funds to accamt specified by CACI. This
payment obligation shall be Infonet's and GSI'e sesponsibility to CACI in connection with suchm@oyees. In the event that CACI
terminates any such employee for "cause”, as ¢hat iis defined in the employment agreement betw®®@l and such employee, CACI
hereby agrees to repay to Infonet any portion {oif@pplicable) of the Payment allocable to teatployee which has not been actually paid
to such employee pursuant to such agreements. GAdlll make such repayment to Infonet by wire transf immediately available funds
within ten days after the effective date of the Eype's termination.

4. Intellectual Property. Infonet is concurrenthagting to CACI intellectual property rights as &&th in the "Assignment of Intellectual
Property" and the "Assignment of Third-Party Ireetual Property” delivered in connection with tHesihg.

5. Use of Names. For a period of 180 days follovaftgr the Closing Date, CACI and CASub shall bempied to use the names "Infonet
Services Corporation" and "Government Systems, bircvariations thereof solely for the purposed#itifying themselves as the acquiror
GSl's business.

6. Assignment of Infonet contracts. The partie®adhat the business of GSI being acquired by GA€lides the contracts identified in
Schedule A attached hereto, as to which Infoniteéscontracting party. Infonet has assigned thoséracts to CASub in the manner provided
in the Acquisition Agreement with respect to GShiracts; and Infonet hereby undertakes to pursuefBment approval of assignment



novation of those contracts in the manner andedcettient provided in the Acquisition Agreement witspect to GSI contracts.

7. Indemnification. Subject to the limitations &atth in this Closing Agreement, Infonet shall inal@ify and hold harmless CACI and CASub
and their respective successors by merger or ofpemation of law (the "Successors"), directors affiders from and against all losses,
liabilities, claims, damages, costs or expensesdu@ing, without limitation, reasonable expensemuéstigation and reasonable attorneys'
fees and disbursements) suffered, incurred or paid:

a. that would not have been suffered, incurredaid i all the representations, warranties, covémand agreements of GSI in the Acquisition
Agreement or in any other instrument or documestdbed in
Section 5.2 of the Acquisition Agreement had bewith(respect to representatio

ns and warranties) true and had been (with reg¢pexvenants and agreements) fully performed alfitidd;

b. under the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Nzdiion Act of 1988 ("WARN") or similar law as tlesult of any "plant closing" or "me
layoff," within the meaning of WARN, that occursatprior to Closing;

c. as a result of any Action arising out of or tielg to the conduct of the business of GSI befarafter the Closing or any liability or
obligation, or alleged liability, of GSI not specHlly assumed by CACI under this Closing Agreemantl

d. as a result of any Action which arises out ofadates to the failure of GSI to pay, promptly aviten due, any tax, fee or other charge
which shall become due or shall have accrued ocownt@f the use, acquisition or ownership of GSay of the Assets or any tax, fee or
other charge GSl is obligated to pay, or to reireBUCACI or CASub for, hereunder on account of aig ef the Assets or the transactions
contemplated hereby.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrarynfibnet and/or GSI shall be required to indemi@#CI, CASub or any of the

Subsidiaries or any of their respective directoficers or Successors with respect to the same @iedamage and amount, the satisfaction of
such indemnity to one of them by either InfoneG@l shall discharge Infonet's obligations to theeoto

the extent of the amount paid.

8. Conditions. The obligations and liabilities afdnet to a person or entity seeking indemnifiaatian "Indemnified Party") under this
Closing Agreement with respect to claims resulfiogn the assertion of liability by third partiesathbe subject to the following conditions:

a. The Indemnified Party shall give written notiodnfonet of the nature of the assertion of liypiby a third party and the amount thereof
promptly after the Indemnified Party learns of sasBertion. The Indemnified Party also shall givigtten notice to Infonet of any assertior
liability made by it against GSI and shall providéonet with a copy of such assertion. The foregaintwithstanding, failure of an
Indemnified Party to comply with its obligationsder this Section 8 shall affect its right to indétyionly to the extent Infonet demonstrates
actual damage caused by such failure.

b. If any Action is brought by a third party agdias Indemnified Party, the Action shall be defehtg Infonet and such defense shall incl
all appeals or reviews which counsel for Infonetlstieem appropriate. Until Infonet shall have assd the defense of any such Action, or if
the Indemnified Party shall have reasonably coreduthat there are likely to be defenses availabtee Indemnified Party that are different
from or in addition to those available to Infoniet\{hich case Infonet shall not be entitled to assuhe defense of such Action), all legal or
other expenses reasonably incurred by the Indeadhiarty shall be borne by Infonet and shall baicefm Infonet by the Indemnified Part

it is finally determined that Infonet was not liakdr responsible for the claim underlying the Agtio

c. In any Action initiated by a third party and éefled by Infonet,

(i) the Indemnified Party shall have the right orlepresented by advisory counsel and accountrits,own expense, (ii) Infonet shall keep
the Indemnified Party fully informed as to the stabf such Action at all stages thereof, whetheraiithe Indemnified Party is represented by
its own counsel, (iii) the Indemnified Party shalhke available to Infonet, and its attorneys ammbantants, all books and records of the
Indemnified Party relating to such Action, and (v parties shall render to each other such assist(including, without limitation, as
contemplated by Section 4.6 of the Acquisition Agment) as may be reasonably required for the papgadequate defense of such Action.

d. In any Action initiated by a third party and eefled by Infonet, Infonet shall not make any saitiet of any claim without the written
consent of the Indemnified Party, which consentl sttd be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Withiaatting the generality of the
foregoing, it shall not be deemed unreasonablettthald consent to a settlement involving injunetior other equitable relief against the
Indemnified Party or its assets, employees or l@ssin

9. Claims. If a claim is to be made by a party parg to Section 7 or 8 hereunder against Infohetctaiming party shall give written notice
(a "Claim Notice") to Infonet as soon as practieadtter the claiming party becomes aware of any éamdition or event which may give rise
to a claim for which indemnification may be soughtler this Closing Agreement. Each IndemnifiedyPsinall use its reasonable commer
efforts not to assert duplicative claims againgiet and GSI and to keep each of Infonet and @Il informed about claims made by such
Indemnified Party against the other (and the pregyend resolution of such claims).

10. Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding anythg herein to the contrary, Infonet shall not belkato CACI or CASub in connection wi



this Closing Agreement or the transactions contatedl by the Acquisition Agreement for any indenaaifion or other form of obligation (i)
unless (A) the claim is ripe, (B) the Claim Notibelivered in connection with such claim describesetual occurrence giving rise to such
claim and (C) the Claim Notice is received by tlagty from which indemnification is sought on or &&f June 30, 2000 and (ii) unless and
until the aggregate amount of liability for any sea exceeds $25,000 (provided that thereafter étfenall make indemnification thereunder
for the aggregate amount of such liability, inchgliwithout limitation, such $25,000). The total@amt of Infonet's and GSl's obligation to
indemnify or otherwise pay CACI, CASub or any otperson or entity for any reason in connection whik Closing Agreement or the
transactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreenshall not exceed, in aggregate, the Purchase. RYACI hereby agrees immediately
to reimburse Infonet upon Infonet's demand if alemCACI, CASub, or any other Indemnified Partyeiees indemnification or payment in
excess of the Purchase Price from Infonet and @&luant to his Closing Agreement and/or the ActjoisiAgreement.

11. Representations and Warranties of Infonet.neitfés a corporation duly organized, validly exigteand in good standing under the laws of
Delaware. Infonet has the full corporate powerxecaite, deliver, and perform this Closing Agreensert to carry out its obligations
hereunder. The execution, delivery and performarfitkis Closing Agreement have been duly and walalthorized by the Board of
Directors of Infonet, and no other corporate prdaggs on the part of Infonet remain necessary thaize the execution, delivery and
performance of this Closing Agreement. This Closhygeement has been duly executed and deliverddfbget and is the legal, valid and
binding obligation of Infonet, enforceable agailmbnet in accordance with its terms except as reefability may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or other laws affectiyggerally the enforcement of creditors' rights ercept to the extent that courts may award
money damages rather than specific performancertafactual provisions.

12. Miscellaneous. Capitalized terms used, butlefihed, herein shall have the respective meardsgsbed to such terms in the Acquisition
Agreement

. All notices and other communications hereundatl & in writing and shall be given in the manget forth in Section 6.6 of the Acquisiti
Agreement. This Closing Agreement may be executehe or more counterparts, all of which togetheilsconstitute one and the same
Closing Agreement. This Closing Agreement shaljbeerned by and construed in accordance with e & the Commonwealth of
Virginia.

INFONET SERVICES CORPORATION

Narme:
Title:

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

By /sl
Name:
Title:
CACI, INC.
By /sl
Nane



Exhibit 99.3

CACI Completes Acquisition of
Government Systems, Inc. (GSI)

Also Signs Business Agreement With GSI Seller etett Services Corporation

ARLINGTON, VA, November 3, 1997 -- CACI Internatiahinc (Nasdaq: CACI) announced today that it aegeted its acquisition of
Government Systems, Inc. (GSI). CACI paid $28 wrillin cash for the business and net assets ofgBlan additional payment of $5.5
million to pay-off existing debt of GSI. The tratian was funded through borrowings under the camijseexisting line of credit. CACI
expects the acquisition to be slightly accretive

to earnings per share in the first year with sigaifit contributions thereafter. The intent to acguvas originally announced on September 10,
1997.

GSI, headquartered in Chantilly, Virginia, has apfmately 250 employees worldwide. Its current aimavenues are $36 million. GSI
delivers international communications and netwaliated services to the U.S. Government and ottgamizations. These services include
full implementation of dedicated private networkgegrated public and private networks, installatimd maintenance, and network
management and operations. GSI maintains a safittaci base with tremendous long-term growth paer¥lajor clients include the
Department of Defense, the Federal Aviation Adntiatson and Globalstar.

"This acquisition directly fuels CACI's growth dtegy and strongly positions

us in the rapidly expanding, high-potential areamhmunications services," said Dr. J. P. (Jackidom, CACI Chairman and CEO. "We
welcome the exceptionally talented GSI employedh@dCACI Team. The combination of GSI's unmatcéteeingths in data communications
networks with CACI's comprehensive information tealogy solutions is a new and powerful total sesvaffering for our mutual clients.”

CACI purchased GSI from Infonet Services Corporateomultinational communications network providendquartered in EI Segundo,
California. As a

result of the acquisition, CACI will be able to effinfonet's worldwide communications services pratiucts to its clients, and has also
agreed with Infonet to jointly pursue additionapoptunities for end-to-end communications and netvirategration services.

CACl is an information technology products and 8=s provider that specializes in developing anégrating systems, software, and
simulation products in support of government agemieind commercial enterprises worldwide. Celelya@8years in business, the company
has approximately 3,600 employees and operatesfonbre than 70 offices in the U.S. and Europe.

Several comments set forth above represent forlamking statements. These statements are subj@optartant factors that could cause
actual results to

differ materially from the statements made toddye Tactors which could cause a material differdnaesults include, but are not limited to
the following: regional and national economic caiwdis; changes in interest rates; changes in govenhspending policies and/or decisions
concerning specific programs; the individual bussdecisions of our customers and clients; devetopsrin technology; competitive factors
and pricing pressures; changes in the regulati@muobusiness; and our own ability to obtain theuts now projected or anticipated.

HH#

For investor information contact:
Deborah Tucker

Investor Relations Director
(703) 841-3710
dtucker@hq.caci.com

For other information contact:
Jody Brown

Public Relations Director
(703) 841-7801

jbrown@hgq.caci.con
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